
   

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL  

AND 

CLEARFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL AGENCY (CDRA) 

WORK AND POLICY SESSIONS 

October 28, 2014 

 
Mission Statement: To provide leadership in advancing core community values; sustain safety, security and health; 

and provide progressive, caring and effective services. We take pride in building a community where individuals, 

families and businesses can develop and thrive. 

 

Executive Conference Room 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 

6:00 P.M. CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION  
Discussion on a Final Subdivision Plat Amending the Larsen Commercial Subdivision 

Discussion on a Proposed Amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the General Plan  

Discussion on a Proposed Rezone for Property Located at Approximately 919 West 

and 939 West, 1600 South in Clearfield 

 

**ADJOURN AS THE CITY COUNCIL AND IMMEDIATELY RECONVENE  

AS THE CDRA IN A WORK SESSION ** 
 

CDRA WORK SESSION 
Discussion on the Sale of Property located at 690 South State Street 

 

 (Any items not addressed prior to the Policy Session will be addressed in a Work Session  

immediately following the Policy Session) 

 
City Council Chambers 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 

 

7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 
CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Shepherd 

OPENING CEREMONY:   Councilmember Bush 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   September 23, 2014 – Work Session 

      October 7, 2014 – Work Session 

      October 14, 2014 – Policy Session 

      October 14, 2014 – Work Session 

       

PRESENTATIONS: 

1. PRESENTATION OF THE YARD OF THE YEAR AWARD 

 
 BACKGROUND: Each year, Clearfield City sponsors a Yard of the Week contest throughout the 

City. The Parks and Recreation Commission members visit eleven different zones in the City 

during the summer and submit a weekly winner. At the end of the summer, the Commission 

members judge the weekly winners and select a winner for Yard of the Year. This year’s Yard of 

the Year winner is Robert and LaRue Hawthorn. The runners-up are David McIntire and Grant 

Olsen. 

 



   

2. ARGUMENTS FOR AND AGAINST PROPOSITION #7, ALSO KNOWN AS THE 

PARAT (PARKS, ARTS, RECREATION, AQUATICS AND TRAILS) TAX 
 
 BACKGROUND: State Code requires that equal time be allowed for presentations on arguments 

both for and against the ballot proposition during a public meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

3. RECEIVE COMMENT FOR FSP 1410-0001, A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT 

REQUEST TO AMEND THE LARSEN COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION PLAT LOT 2, 

LOCATED AT 325 WEST 1700 SOUTH (TIN: 12-243-0011, 12-243-0008) 

 
 BACKGROUND: The Larsen Commercial subdivision was originally approved in 1995 and a 

structure was then built at 325 West 1700 South. In 1998, the property and building were then 

subdivided through recordation of a Deed of Trust. The applicant requested a Conditional Use 

Permit (CUP) and a building permit for a new structure on the remainder portion of Lot 2 in 

October 2014. That request was conditioned by the Planning Commission upon the correction of 

the illegal lot split, and the recording of an amended plat.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment.  

 

4. RECEIVE COMMENT ON A PROPOSED ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT TO  

 TITLE 11, CHAPTER 8 – AGRICULTURE ZONES, CHAPTER 9 – RESIDENTIAL 

ZONES AND CHAPTER 13 – SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS – TO 

ESTABLISH STANDARDS FOR HOME DAYCARES AND PRESCHOOLS AS 

PERMITTED USES WITHIN RESIDENTIAL ZONES.  

 
 BACKGROUND: Currently the review body for all Conditional Use Permits is the Planning 

Commission. While the requirement to bring all Conditional Use Permits to the Planning 

Commission has helped drive quality standards, it can become a time burden for the Commission 

to review minor items as required by current procedures; additionally the applicant is required to 

wait for the Planning Commission to review minor or insignificant applications. The Planning 

Commission discussed the issue at its meetings on August 6, 2014 and September 10, 2014, 

during which proposed language was drafted. The Commission conducted a Public Hearing at its 

meeting on Wednesday, October 1, 2014, following which the Commission voted to recommend 

the proposed changes to the City Council. This zoning text amendment would be effective across 

all residential zones in within the city.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment.  

 

5. RECEIVE COMMENT FOR GPA 1410-0002, A PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN 

AMENDMENT FOR DESIGNATED FUTURE LAND USE CATEGORIES ON 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 919 AND 939 WEST, 1600 SOUTH 

(TIN’s: 12-391-0008 AND 12-391-0009) FROM COMMERCIAL TO 

MANUFACTURING 

 
 BACKGROUND: The proposal includes a request for two parcels comprising approximately 1.31 

acres collectively to be redesignated from a Commercial to a Manufacturing land use category in 

the General Plan’s Future Land Use Map with the intent to construct a new structure for a 

warehouse/distribution style use. The property is currently two individual parcels. Depending on 

the site plan for the potential M-1 zoned use, the property owner may choose to combine the two 

parcels into one. An application for rezone from Commercial to Manufacturing has been made in 

addition to this request to amend the City’s General Plan.  



   

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment. 

 

6. RECEIVE COMMENT FOR RZN 1410-0002, A REQUEST FROM CON WILCOX 

FOR A REZONE ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 919 AND 939 

WEST, 1600 SOUTH (TIN’s: 12-391-0008 AND 12-391-0009) FROM (C-2) 

COMMERCIAL TO (M-1) MANUFACTURING              

 
 BACKGROUND: The request is for approximately 1.31 acres to be rezoned from (C-2) 

Commercial to (M-1) Manufacturing with the intent to construct a new structure for a warehouse/ 

distribution style use. The property is currently two individual parcels. Depending on the site plan 

for the potential M-1 zoned use, the property owner may choose to combine the two parcels into 

one. An application for General Plan Amendment as well as for the requested rezone was 

previously made to the Planning Commission.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Receive public comment. 

 

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

8. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FSP 1410-0001 TO AMEND THE LARSEN 

COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION PLAT LOT 2, LOCATED AT 325 WEST 1700 

SOUTH (TIN: 12-243-0011, 12-243-0008)   

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approve FSP 1410-0001, a request by Cameron Winquist to amend the 

Larsen Commercial Subdivision Plat Lot 2, located at 325 West 1700 South and authorize the 

Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

9. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2014-23 AUTHORIZING A ZONING 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO TITLE 11, CHAPTER 8 – AGRICULTURE ZONES, 

CHAPTER 9 – RESIDENTIAL ZONES AND CHAPTER 13 – SUPPLEMENTARY 

REGULATIONS – TO ESTABLISH STANDARDS FOR HOME DAYCARES AND 

PRESCHOOLS AS PERMITTED USES WITHIN RESIDENTIAL ZONES.  

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approve Ordinance 2014-23 authorizing a Zoning Text Amendment 

  to Title 11, Chapter 8 – Agriculture Zones, Chapter 9 – Residential Zones and  

 Chapter 13 – Supplementary Regulations – to establish standards for Home Daycares and 

Preschools as permitted uses within Residential Zones and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any 

necessary documents.  

 

10. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2014-24 AMENDING THE GENERAL 

PLAN TO CHANGE THE DESIGNATED LAND USE CATEGORY ON PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 919 WEST AND 939 WEST, 1600 SOUTH 

(TIN’s: 12-391-0008 AND 12-391-0009) FROM COMMERCIAL TO EITHER 

MANUFACTURING OR BUSINESS PARK  

 
 RECOMMENDATION: Approve Ordinance 2014-24 as proposed by the applicant (change to 

Manufacturing), or in the alternative as proposed by staff (change to Business Park), and 

authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.   

 

 



   

11. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2014-25 REZONING PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 919 WEST AND 939 WEST, 1600 SOUTH 

(TIN’s: 12-391-0008 AND 12-391-0009) FROM (C-2) COMMERCIAL TO (M-1) 

MANUFACTURING   

 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Ordinance 2014-25 rezoning property located at approximately 

919 West and 939 West, 1600 South (Tin’s: 12-391-0008 and 12-391-0009) from (C-2) 

Commercial to (M-1) Manufacturing, conditioned upon recordation of the Declaration of Use 

Restriction (as approved and accepted by the City Council) on each parcel and authorize the 

Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

12. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AND CONSENT TO THE MAYOR’S PROPOSED 

APPOINTMENTS OF INDIVIDUALS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 BACKGROUND: The Planning Commission currently has vacancies for three regular members 

and up to three alternate members. Residents were asked to submit letters of interest and 

interviews were conducted by the City Council during the work sessions on October 7, 2014 and 

October 14, 2014. 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve and consent to the Mayor’s appointment of Michael Millard 

from an alternate member to regular member of the Planning Commission with a term expiring 

February 2019, Robert Allen from an alternate member to regular member with a term expiring 

February 2015, and Amy Mabey as a regular member with a term expiring February 2016, Steve 

Parkinson as an alternate member with a term expiring February 2017, Michael Britton as an 

alternate member with a term expiring February 2018 and Brady Jugler as an alternate member 

with a term expiring on February 2016, and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary 

documents.  

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS: 
 Mayor’s Report 
 City Councils’ Reports 

 City Manager’s Report 

 Staffs’ Reports 

 

**ADJOURN AS THE CITY COUNCIL AND RECONVENE AS THE CDRA** 
 

1. APPROVAL OF THE CLEARFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND 

RENEWAL AGENCY (CDRA) MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 26, 2014 WORK 

AND POLICY SESSIONS AND THE SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 WORK SESSION 

 

2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF A REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT TO SELL 

THE PROPERTY AT 690 SOUTH STATE STREET (PARCEL ID# 12-434-0001) TO 

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF LAYTON. 

 
 BACKGROUND: In January of 1996, the Clearfield CDRA and First National Bank of Layton 

entered into a 30-year ground lease for this parcel of land, and the bank subsequently constructed 

their building.  The lease provides First National Bank the exclusive and irrevocable option to 

purchase the leased land at any time during the term of the lease for the total sum of $250,000.  

The bank recently provided the CDRA with written notice of its intent to exercise this option. 

 

  



   

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Real Estate Purchase Contract and proposed 

addendum/counteroffer for the sale of the property at 690 South State Street  

 (Parcel ID #12-434-0001) to First National Bank of Layton, and authorize the Chair’s signature  

 to any necessary documents. 

 

**CDRA ADJOURN** 

 

Dated this 23
rd

 day of October, 2014. 

 

/s/Kimberly S. Read, Deputy City Recorder 

 

 

The City of Clearfield, in accordance with the ‘Americans with Disabilities Act’ provides 

accommodations and auxiliary communicative aids and services for all those citizens needing assistance.  

Persons requesting these accommodations for City sponsored public meetings, service programs or events 

should call Nancy Dean at 525-2714, giving her 48-hour notice.  
 

 

 



 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

September 23, 2014 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember 

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

EXCUSED:   Ron Jones   Councilmember   

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

    Brian Brower    City Attorney 

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

EXCUSED:    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: There were no visitors.  

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 6:20 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON AN UPDATE TO THE CITY’S CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

 

Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, explained for several years the City had construction 

standards which identified the minimum expectation of improvements for developers. He 

mentioned the standards hadn’t been updated for several years and believed the proposed 

updated standards would more clearly identify the City’s expectation. He indicated the Council 

should have received a copy of the revised standards with agenda packet and commented the 

specifics were highlighted.  

 

Mr. Hodge reported the most significant change was the inclusion of the storm water 

development and management program. He added there were some illustrations and text specific 

to the City’s storm water management which up to this time there was nothing which could be 

referred to by developers to determine compliance. He stated this inclusion was important to the 

new construction standards.  

 

Mr. Hodge informed the Council of another change not included in the construction standards 

which was addressing ownership of sewer laterals from the street to the resident/business. He 



 

 

stated it would be important to clarify ownership for maintenance purposes and indicated the 

clarification would be included in the final draft.    

 

Mr. Hodge referred to the drawings in the revised standards and explained street light pole 

standards specific to subdivisions had also been addressed. He mentioned in the past each 

developer had installed the light poles as they each desired and reported the new standard would 

require a concrete footing as part of the installation as well as a hooded storm water gutter in the 

box as well.  

 

Councilmember Bush informed the Council the NDSD (North Davis Sewer District) had recently 

updated its construction standards which addressed locations of manholes and stated it should 

have been forwarded to the City. Mr. Hodge commented he had not yet received a copy. He 

mentioned the City could reference the NDSD standards in the new plan. Councilmember Bush 

stated he would contact Kevin Cowan at NDSD to determine the best way to refer to the 

District’s standards in the City’s construction standards document. 

  

DISCUSSION ON THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE CLEARFIELD FOUNDATION FOR 

ARTS, PARKS AND RECREATION 

 

Brian Brower, City Attorney, indicated the Council should have received a draft of the Articles 

of Incorporation for Clearfield’s Foundation for the Arts, Parks and Recreation. He reminded the 

Council that once the foundation/organization was established any funds received would need to 

be segregated from City funds. He emphasized the importance that the funds never be co-

mingled and shared an example as to how City funds recognized from the proposed PARAT Tax 

could be contributed to the Foundation.   

 

Mr. Brower reminded the Council of previous discussions regarding the Board of Directors and 

requested clarification on if it would consist of a staff member, two councilmembers and the City 

Manager who would act as the President. He indicated additional board members would be 

needed and stated the bylaws would need to define how those positions would be filled as well as 

the succession of councilmembers. He stated upon organizing the makeup of the Board of 

Directors and the drafting of bylaws the City would move forward in obtaining a Tax 

Identification Number and begin the 501c3 exemption from the IRS. He requested feedback and 

direction from the Council regarding the Articles of Incorporation, bylaws or the makeup of the 

Board of Directors.  

 

Councilmember Bush suggested designating a minimum and maximum number of members 

serving on the Board of Directors and a discussion took place regarding possible language in the 

bylaws specific to the Board of Directors. Mr. Brower suggested the Council approve the 

establishment of the Foundation by resolution. No further direction was expressed by the 

Council.  

 

 

 

 



 

 

UPDATE ON THE UTAH LEAGUE OF CITIES AND TOWNS ANNUAL CONVENTION 

AND AN UPDATE ON THE STATUS OF THE WEST DAVIS CORRIDOR STUDY 

 

Councilmember Bush reported he and Councilmember Benson attended the Utah League of 

Cities and Towns Annual Convention and stated he had emailed the Council his notes. He 

reported he had attended a session specific to After-school Programs because the City was in the 

process of participating with the North Davis Junior High (NDJH) in providing services for 

youth after school. Councilmember Benson clarified the City was still assisting with Program 

Care. Eric Howes, Community Services Director, responded the City’s contribution was 

providing a program during the summer months. Councilmember Benson expressed confidence 

with Program Care and announced she had also taken some literature from the Convention to 

pass along to Todd Hammond, (NDJH).  

 

Councilmember Bush informed the Council that he had also attended a session on how to use the  

2-1-1 phone system. He also participated in a session regarding farmers markets and suggested 

the City consider the event in the future. Councilmember Benson commented on how the events 

had been beneficial in bringing residents together. Councilmember LeBaron suggested a farmers 

market might be an opportunity for the “plaza” which was planned for Clearfield Station. The 

Council expressed agreement with the suggestion. Councilmember Benson mentioned some 

cities held their farmers markets at a different location each week.  

 

Councilmember Bush reported he had learned about Brownsfields and stated he had visited with 

representatives from the State. He informed the Council that there were federal grant 

opportunities to be used for clean-up efforts and suggested the City consider a grant for the 

Tesoro site. Adam Lenhard, City Manager, explained in order for the City to apply for a 

Brownsfield grant it would need to own the property. He requested staff work with (BP) British 

Petroleum to release the deed restriction which would allow the City to pursue the grant.  

 

Councilmember Benson announced she had participated in a tour of Ogden City which had been 

successful in leasing portions of its City building. Mr. Lenhard commented the City was moving 

to consolidate some City functions into a customer service center and once implemented 

believed it would free up office space at which time the City could consider leasing office space.  

 

Councilmember Bush distributed a handout illustrating future streets/trails, etc. associated with 

future transportation. He reported a discussion had taken place about the possible relocation of 

the 650 North – I-15 interchange to 300 North and making 300 North into a four lane road. He 

informed the Council one suggestion was to have an elevated heavy truck lane which would 

bypass all traffic signals which trucks would use to enter Freeport Center by using SR 193.  

 

Mayor Shepherd believed there were issues regarding any future possible transportation 

improvements due to funding considerations. He also pointed out issues regarding the 650 North 

interchange and access to Falcon Hill.  

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 



 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

October 7, 2014 
 
PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 
 
PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 
    Kent Bush   Councilmember 
    Ron Jones   Councilmember 
    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember 
    Bruce Young   Councilmember 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 
    Brian Brower    City Attorney 
    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 
    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 
    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 
    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 
    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 
 
VISITORS: Don Baron, Brady Jugler, David Hansen, Michael Britton, Craig Hokanson, Steve 
Parkinson  
 
Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION INTERVIEWS   
 
Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, explained the duties, responsibilities and time 
commitment required to serve on the Commission. The City Council interviewed the following 
individuals to be considered for current vacancies on the Planning Commission: Don Baron, 
Brady Jugler, David Hansen, Michael Britton, Craig Hokanson and Steve Parkinson.  
 
JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, left the meeting at 6:53 p.m. 
 
The Council took a break at 7:22 p.m. 
The meeting resumed at 7:37 p.m. 
 
Brian Brower, City Attorney, Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, Rich Knapp, Administrative 
Services Director, Greg Krusi, Police Chief, arrived at 7:37 p.m. 
 
DISCUSSION ON PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS   
 
Councilmember LeBaron reported Nike Peterson, Planning Commission Chair, wasn’t able to 
attend tonight’s meeting; however, she had attended some training sponsored by the Utah League 
of Cities and Towns. He stated she had learned it was a good Planning Commission would have 
members from different backgrounds as they would approach the issues from different 

1 
 



 

perspectives. He indicated she had requested the Council keep that in mind when considering the 
applicants. The Council discussed the applicants and the qualities each would bring to the 
Planning Commission.    
 
DISCUSSION ON AMENDING TITLE 11, CHAPTER 13, SUPPLEMENTARY 
REGULATIONS – FIREWORKS STAND, TEMPORARY OR SEASONAL MERCHANT, 
AND MOBILE FOOD VENDOR REGULATIONS  
 
Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, reminded the Council it had requested staff propose 
amendments to Title 11 specifically to seasonal merchants to accommodate temporary 
businesses after a request by Hokulia Ice to extend the allowable number of days. He stated staff 
had reviewed ordinances from numerous cities and expressed his opinion the City didn’t have the 
density to implement a competitive bid process for permits by vendors. He reviewed the 
proposed amendments to the ordinance and location restriction language with the Council. He 
explained the reasoning that no restrictions were being imposed for Freeport Center, Freeport 
West and the Legend Hills area and referred to the map which illustrated the allowed areas and 
“districts”. He reported the Planning Commission had recommended not allowing fireworks 
stands at the Legend Hills area because it didn’t believe that use would be appropriate for the 
location and requested direction from the Council. Councilmember Bush suggested the inclusion 
of properties along 200 South from Bogey’s going east to the end of the Kier commercial 
properties as well as the west side of  South Main from 1700 South and a discussion took place. 
Adam Lenhard, City Manager, suggested identifying the areas on the map and referencing them 
in the text of the ordinance amendment. He believed that addition would clarify the definition of 
the areas avoiding misinterpretation.   
 
Councilmember LeBaron inquired if the amendment would include guidelines specific to 
aesthetics for the temporary stand. Mr. Hess read from the proposed ordinance changes which 
specifically identified definition/expectations of appearance. Councilmember LeBaron expressed 
concern with the verbiage “professional appearance” in the definition as it was open for 
interpretation and could be subjective. Mr. Hess pointed out the specific call outs in the 
definition could be used to define “professional appearance”.  
 
Councilmember Bush inquired about the 180 day limit. Mr. Hess responded the 180 day limit 
was specific to Title 4 – Business Licensing, and stated there were no other proposed changes for 
Title 4 and mentioned it would be cross referenced with Title 11.   
 
DISCUSSION ON AMENDING TITLE 11 – HOME DAYCARES AND PRESCHOOLS  
 
Mr. Hess referred to his staff report which identified proposed new language to Supplementary 
Regulations – Residential Daycares and Preschools and reviewed them with the Council.  

• Drop-off/pick-up plans which would require staggered schedules, at least a one hour time 
separation 

• Traffic flow 
• Outdoor environment which would require an outdoor play area for children that is safely 

accessible to children. 

2 
 



 

• If the zoning administrator determines that an application needs further interpretation, he 
may request Planning Commission review of the approval. 

 
Councilmember Bush inquired if these uses would require a Conditional Use Permit. Brian 
Brower, City Attorney, explained these would be permitted uses in specific zones and the 
Supplementary Regulations would be enforced administratively by Mr. Hess, Development 
Services Manager. Mr. Hess reviewed the approval process with the Council. Mr. Brower 
informed the Council the Planning Commission had discussed prohibiting or limiting the 
allowance of daycares in certain zones such as multi-family residential higher density. Mr. Hess 
mentioned the only zone in which this use currently wasn’t allowed was the RM (Mobile Home 
Residential) Zone.   
 
Mr. Hess informed the Council the Planning Commission had also expressed a concern regarding 
a noticing component. He explained currently as a Conditional Use Permit the affected neighbors 
would be notified and with this now being a Permitted Use, the noticing component would no 
longer take place. Councilmember LeBaron inquired if any of the amendments would then make 
it easier to allow designated open space as the outdoor play area specific to the day 
care/preschool and whether it was identified in the Open Space definition. Mr. Hess expressed 
his opinion this would be a private property issue and the authorized individual would need to 
grant approval by also signing the application and shared an example of a HOA granting 
approval of its Open Space for this purpose. Councilmember LeBaron expressed concern this 
could possibly be misinterpreted by individuals desiring to fence off Open Space near Holt 
Elementary School.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 

3 
 



 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 

October 14, 2014 
 
PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 
 
PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 
    Kent Bush   Councilmember 
    Ron Jones   Councilmember  
    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember 
    Bruce Young   Councilmember 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 
    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager  
    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 
    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 
    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 
    Stacy Millgate   CDBG Coordinator 
    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 
    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 
    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 
    Avry Byington  Administrative Assistant 
 
EXCUSED:   Brian Brower   City Attorney 
 
VISITORS: Gretchen Thompson, Yoshio Rycjn, Andrew Allred, David Lee, Bob Bercher, 
Carole Draper, Natalie Draper, Hailey McArthur, Christopher Helt, Samuel Helt, Kolby Reel, 
Sam Ingram, Gisell Guzman, Jackie Villejo, Aaliyah Walker 
 
Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Mayor Shepherd informed the citizens present that if they would like to comment during Public 
Hearings or Citizen Comments there were forms to fill out by the door. 
 
Councilmember Benson conducted the Opening Ceremony.  
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE SEPTEMBER 23, 2014 POLICY SESSION 
 
Councilmember Benson moved to approve the minutes from the September 23, 2014 policy 
session as written, seconded by Councilmember LeBaron. The motion carried upon the 
following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. 
Voting NO – None.  
 
 
 
 

1 
 



 

 
PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON A PROPOSED ZONING TEXT 
AMENDMENT TO TITLE 11, CHAPTER 13, SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS – 
FIREWORKS STAND, TEMPORARY OR SEASONAL MERCHANT, AND MOBILE FOOD 
VENDOR REGULATIONS 
 
The City Council previously adopted Ordinance 2014-14 amending the license period for 
temporary or seasonal merchants from 60 days to 180 days. As part of the process, staff was 
directed to investigate a zoning text amendment which would allow for temporary food vendors, 
while limiting the negative impacts associated with those types of businesses.  
 
Stacy Millgate, CDBG Coordinator, explained staff and the Planning Commission had been 
working on the mobile food vendor ordinance. She reported the Planning Commission had 
drafted language which had been provided for the proposed Zoning Text Amendment. She 
briefly reviewed the changes: 

• Limiting the locations to the main corridors of the City 
• Language specifically addressing the outward appearance of the vendor stands 

 
Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:04 p.m. 
 
Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Councilmember LeBaron moved to close the public hearing at 7:06 p.m. seconded by 
Councilmember Bush. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 
Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Sam Ingram, resident, asked the Council their opinion of the number one concern as a Nation. Mayor 
Shepherd responded there were a lot of the issues at the National level but stated he had great concern 
regarding the budget and emphasized the importance for the Nation to have a balanced budget.   
 
APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2014-22 AUTHORIZING THE ZONING TEXT 
AMENDMENT TO TITLE 11, CHAPTER 13, SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS – 
FIREWORKS STAND, TEMPORARY OR SEASONAL MERCHANT, AND MOBILE FOOD 
VENDOR REGULATIONS 
 
Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve Ordinance 2014-22 authorizing the zoning text 
amendment to Title 11, Chapter 13, Supplementary Regulations – Fireworks Stand, 
Temporary or Seasonal Merchant, and Mobile Food Vendor Regulations, and authorize 
the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Benson. 
The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, 
Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. 
 
 

2 
 



 

APPROVAL OF THE FINAL ACCEPTANCE AND RELEASE OF ESCROW FOR TANNER 
HERITAGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
 
Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, reviewed the history associated with Tanner 
Heritage Estates Subdivision and stated Tanner Heritage Estates Subdivision was located in the 
extreme west of Clearfield City located south of 700 South at approximately 1200 South 1480 
West. In accordance with Title 12, Chapter 9, of the Clearfield City Code, the City Engineer had 
completed the final inspection of the Tanner Heritage Estates Subdivision and found all 
improvements to have been installed correctly. The warranty period was over and the City 
Engineer recommended final acceptance of the improvements for perpetual maintenance, and a 
release of the remaining escrow funds by the City Council. Staff was also recommending the 
release of the escrow funds.  
 
Councilmember Young moved to accept the subdivision improvements at Tanner Heritage 
Estates Subdivision for perpetual maintenance by the City and release any remaining 
funds associated therewith in escrow to the Developer, and authorize the Mayor’s signature 
to any documents, seconded by Councilmember Bush. The motion carried upon the 
following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. 
Voting NO – None. 
 
APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE 2014-21 ENACTING TITLE 1, CHAPTER 14 – REQUIRING 
ADHERENCE TO THE CITY’S CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS 
 
Adam Lenhard, City Manager, explained approval of the ordinance would add a new chapter to 
Title 1 of the City Code. He stated the City had established Construction and Development 
Standards, Technical Specifications and Drawings, and was formally codifying the requirement 
to conform and adhere to those standards for all construction, development and improvements in 
the City.  

 
Councilmember Jones moved to approve Ordinance 2014-21 enacting Title 1, Chapter 14 – 
requiring conformance and adherence to the City’s Construction and Development 
Standards, Technical Specifications and Drawings, and authorize the Mayor’s signature to 
any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Benson. The motion carried upon 
the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and 
Young. Voting NO – None. 
 
APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2014R-22 ESTABLISHING AND APPROVING THE 
CITY’S CONSTRUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, TECHNICAL 
SPECIFICATIONS AND DRAWINGS FOR CLEARFIELD CITY  
 
Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, stated the City currently had established Construction and 
Development Standards, Technical Specifications and Drawings which provideD a minimum 
standard for construction, development and improvements occurring within the City. The latest 
version of the standards, dated September 2014, was prepared and reviewed by the City’s 
Engineer and Public Works Director as well as other staff members. Recommendations making 
corrections, clarifications and updates had been incorporated into the updated document. The 

3 
 



 

largest adjustment to the standards was the inclusion of language and drawings specific to the 
Storm Water Management Plan. He added there were other minor corrections or clarifications 
made throughout the document relative to the North Davis Sewer District and the expectations 
for developers to comply with its standards. He mentioned additional illustrations were included 
specific to laterals for homes and businesses.  
 
Councilmember LeBaron moved to approve Resolution 2014R-22 establishing and 
approving the Construction and Development Standards, Technical Specifications and 
Drawings for Clearfield City and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary 
documents, seconded by Councilmember Young. The motion carried upon the following 
vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting 
NO – None. 
 
APPROVAL OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO PERFORM ANALYSIS 
ON AND COMPLETION OF A STUDY ON IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING 
 
Stacy Millgate, CDBG Coordinator, explained the Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing 
study and report was required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD). She stated staff wanted to contract with an independent contractor to have the study 
conducted and the report prepared. She indicated the report was required since HUD had 
designated the City as an Entitlement Community. 
 
Councilmember Benson asked how long had the City had been an Entitlement City. Ms. Millgate 
responded the City received the designation in 1994 and mentioned the City didn’t meet the 
population criteria at the time; however, because of its location between the Ogden/Salt Lake 
metropolitan area, the City had been recognized as an Entitlement City.  
 
Councilmember Young moved to approve the professional services agreement with Megan 
James to perform analysis on and completion of a study on impediments to fair housing 
and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, seconded by 
Councilmember LeBaron. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 
Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. 
 
APPROVAL OF A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TO CONDUCT AND 
PREPARE A 5-YEAR CONSOLIDATED PLAN FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) WHICH ALSO INCLUDED THE 2015-2016 ONE YEAR ACTION 
PLAN 
 
Stacy Millgate, CDBG Coordinator, stated The 5-Year Consolidated Plan was necessary for 
Clearfield City to qualify for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds through the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). She stated staff wanted to contract with 
an independent contractor to prepare the 5-Year Plan which would also include the 2015-2016 
One Year Action Plan. She indicated the report was required since HUD had designated the City 
as an Entitlement City. She explained the Plan was an indicator as to how the City intended to 
use the grant funds. 
 

4 
 



 

Mayor Shepherd asked Ms. Millgate what changes she anticipated within the next five years 
regarding CDBG funding. Ms. Millgate believed the City would see a decrease in funding within 
the future.  
 
Councilmember Benson moved to approve the professional services agreement with 
LaNiece Davenport to conduct and prepare Clearfield City’s 5-Year Consolidated Plan for 
its Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), which also included the 2015-2016 One 
Year Action Plan and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, 
seconded by Councilmember Bush. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting 
AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Young. Voting NO – None. 
 
UPDATE ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 FINANCIAL STATUS 
 
Rich Knapp, Administrative Services Director, presented the Financial Reports to the Council. 
He distributed handouts reflecting revenues and expenditures. He stated all revenues were within 
anticipated parameters for the first quarter of the budget year and reviewed them with the 
Council:  

• He mentioned there was a slight increase in the General Sales and Use Taxes since last 
year.  

• He pointed out the MIDA Revenue was a new account from last year. 
• He reported the numbers specific to the Aquatic Center and Recreation were draft figures 

and suggested the Council not interpret them as factual at this time. 
• He explained the Court revenues reflected differently than previous years due to the 

Court’s software.  
• He directed the Council to the Enterprise Funds and pointed out the water charges were 

less than last year and attributed that to consumption, and mentioned the rain received 
during August and September may have also contributed.  

 
Mr. Knapp directed the Council to expenditures and reviewed them with the Council: 

• He indicated the differences in IT, Finance, Patrol/Investigations due to staffing issues. 
• Aquatic Center was significantly less than last year and believed that was due to 

significant purchases made last year. He stated operationally the Aquatic Center was 
higher than the previous year.  

• Capital Improvement Fund had expended a significant amount of funds due to the 
completion of the South Main Street Road Improvement.  

 
There were no questions or concerns from the Council regarding the first quarter of the budget 
year.  
 
COMMUNICATION ITEMS 
 
Mayor Shepherd – Reported he had attended the Davis County Gala on Thursday, October 9, 2014. He 
stated Utah Foster Care was the designated recipient of the funds generated by the event and announced 
the City had invited four foster families from Clearfield to sit at its table. He mentioned it was a great 
event and applauded foster families for their efforts.  
 

5 
 



 

Councilmember Benson – nothing to report.  
 
Councilmember Bush  
1. Reported he had attended the National Water Conference on behalf of the NDSD (North Davis 
Sewer District). He stated he had the opportunity to visit with vendors from all over the world regarding 
their products and reported it had been beneficial to him as he was able to gain a better understanding of 
the processes used by the District. He mentioned he had become aware of some potential cost saving 
products which could be used by the District in the future. 
2.  Informed the Council that he attended the Kiwanis Installation Dinner on Saturday, October 11, 
2014. He announced he had been elected to the Board of Directors. He reported the Clearfield Kiwanis 
Club was turning 75 years old this year.  
 
Councilmember Jones – nothing to report 
 
Councilmember LeBaron – Encouraged everyone to take the necessary time to research the names on the 
ballot recently received by Davis County residents. He encouraged citizens to exercise their right to vote.  
 
Councilmember Young – nothing to report.  
 
Adam Lenhard, City Manager –nothing to report. 
 
STAFFS’ REPORTS 
 
Nancy Dean, City Recorder – reviewed the City Council meeting schedule with the Council: 

• No meeting on Tuesday, October 21, 2014 
• Policy Session on Tuesday, October 28, 2014 
• No meeting on Tuesday, November 4, 2014 as it was Election Day 
• No meeting on Tuesday, November 11, 2014 as it was Veteran’s Day 
• Special Session on Tuesday, November 18, 2014, beginning at 6:00 p.m. 
• Policy Session on Tuesday, November 25, 2014 
• Policy Session on Tuesday, December 9, 2014 

 
She reminded everyone the current election was being conducted as a Vote By Mail Election and 
encouraged everyone’s participation. She announced all registered voters should have received their 
ballot in the mail and if not they should contact the Davis County Clerks’ Office. She mentioned there 
were vote centers open on Election Day to accommodate walk in voters.  
 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council in policy session, Councilmember 
Benson moved to adjourn the policy session and reconvene in a work session at 7:28 p.m., 
seconded by Councilmember LeBaron. All voting AYE.   

6 
 



 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
7:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

October 14, 2014 
 
PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 
 
PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 
    Kent Bush   Councilmember 
    Ron Jones   Councilmember 
    Mike LeBaron   Councilmember 
    Bruce Young   Councilmember 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 
    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 
    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 
    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 
    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 
    Avry Byington  Administrative Assistant 
 
VISITORS: Amy Mabey 
 
Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 7:47 p.m. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION INTERVIEWS 
 
The City Council interviewed Amy Mabey to be considered for a vacancy on the Planning 
Commission. 
 
DISCUSSION ON PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 
 
Scott Hess, Development Services Manager, announced there were currently two vacancies for 
alternate members and three regular member vacancies on the Planning Commission. He 
suggested moving Michael Millard and Robert Allen from alternate positions to regular 
positions.  
 
The Council discussed the current Planning Commission vacancies and the interviewed 
candidates to determine proposed appointments. Following a discussion, Mayor Shepherd and 
the City Council determined to appoint Amy Mabey as a member of the Planning Commission 
and Brady Jugler, Michael Britton and Steve Parkinson as alternate members of the Planning 
Commission.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:30 p.m.  
 
 
 



 

    
 

 
 

 

City Council  
 STAFF REPORT 

 
 
TO:    Mayor Shepherd, City Council, and Executive Staff 
 
FROM:  Scott A. Hess, MPA 
   Development Services Manager 

scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org (801) 525-2785 
 

MEETING DATE: October 28, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing, Discussion, and Possible Action on FSP 1410-0001: A 

request by Cameron Winquist to Amend the Larsen Commercial 
Subdivision Plat Lot 2, located at 325 W. 1700 S. (TIN: 12-243-0011, 12-
243-0008). 

 

 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Move to Approve as Conditioned FSP 1410-0001: A request by Cameron Winquist to 
Amend the Larsen Commercial Subdivision Plat Lot 2, located at 325 W. 1700 S. based 
on findings and discussion in the staff report. 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

 
 
 
 

Project Information 
Project Name Larsen Commercial Subdivision Amendment 
Site Location 325 W. 1700 S.  
Tax ID Number 12-243-0011, 12-243-0008 
Applicant and Property Owner Cameron Winquist 
Property Owner Cameron Winquist, Tender Years Real Estate 
Proposed Actions Subdivision Plat Amendment 
Current Zoning C-2 Commercial 
Master Plan Land Use Commercial 
Gross Site Area 1.768 acres 

mailto:scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org


FSP 1410-0001 Larsen Commercial Subdivision Amended Plat 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 2 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
HISTORY 
September 12, 1995 City Council approves Larsen Commercial Subdivison 

 
Spring 1996 Building permit issued, construction of building on 325 West 

1700 South commences.  
 

September 1, 1998 Deed of Trust recorded with Davis County creating illegal 
subdivision. 
 

 
 

Vicinity Map 

SITE 



FSP 1410-0001 Larsen Commercial Subdivision Amended Plat 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 3 

 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
In a special meeting of the Clearfield City Planning Commission on October 15, 2014, this item 
was recommended for approval as conditioned to the City Council based on the staff report and 
discussion at the meeting. 
 
Background 
This amended plat is for the purposes of correcting an illegal lot split on Lot 2 of the Larsen 
Commercial Subdivision. The project was approved in 1995, and was legally issued building 
permit for the structure located at 325 West 1700 South. The property, and subsequently the 
building, was then subdivided in 1998 through recordation of a Deed of Trust. The applicant 
requested a CUP and a building permit for a new structure on the remainder portion of Lot 2. 
That request was conditioned by the Clearfield City Planning Commission upon the correction of 
the illegal lot split, and the recording of an amended plat.  
 
Master Plan and Zoning 
The parcels are Master Planned and zoned Commercial. The proposed amended plat is 
consistent with both the Master Plan and zoning.  
 
Subdivision Plat Approval 
In order to separate land interests, the Deed of Trust was the mechanism used to illegally split 
the lot in 1998. To correct this issue, the plat amendment will re-draw the lot lines, easements, 
and cross access agreements in order to properly subdivide land, and allow the City to provide 
a building permit to the newly entitled structure on the remainder portion of property. The 
parcels as proposed meet the minimums required by the C-2 zoning code. Potential impacts on 
the City’s infrastructure and services, setbacks, and other development standards were 
reviewed and considered through the site plan process on the newly entitled structure. Those 
details will continue to be reviewed and confirmed through the permitting process. 
 
The plat as it is drawn is substantially complete. Staff has reviewed the plat and is working with 
the applicant’s engineer to include all necessary easements, and call-outs required. More 
specifically, staff recommends the inclusion of Public Utility Easements to surround the lots, the 
25’ access easement should continue to 1700 South, there should be a note on the plat 
regarding the separation of the structure. 
 
Public Comment 
No public commend has been received to date.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



FSP 1410-0001 Larsen Commercial Subdivision Amended Plat 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 4 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

1) The applicant shall correct the Plat to include all red-lines from Planning, Engineering, 
and Public Works Departments, including but not limited necessary easements and 
other call-outs as required.  
 

2) Pursuant to the Subdivision Ordinance 12-4-5, an estimate of public improvements (as 
outlined in 12-4-6), shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the City Engineer 
prior to obtaining building permits. An Escrow agreement will be subject to approval by 
the City Engineer and City Attorney and an escrow account shall be established prior 
to obtaining any certificates of occupancy. 
 

3) Pursuant to the Land Use Ordinance 11-13-23(C) and (D) Prior to obtaining any 
certificates of occupancy, the applicant either completes landscaping improvements or 
is subject to establishing an escrow account, as reviewed and approved by the City 
Engineer and City Attorney. 

 
4) The applicant shall provide proof of having obtained and of having maintained, as may 

be periodically requested by the City, all applicable local, state, and federal permits.  
 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Larsen Commercial Subdivision, Lot 2, First Amendment 

 




















































































 















 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

               City Council 
        STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:    Mayor Shepherd, City Council, and Executive Staff 
 
FROM:  Stacy Millgate 
   Business Licenses, CDBG Coordinator 
   smillgate@clearfieldcity.org (801)525-2781 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing, Discussion and Possible Action on ZTA 1409-0006 

Zoning Text Amendment to Title 11, Chapter 8 and Chapter 9 Residential 
Zones, and Chapter 13 Supplementary Regulations, to establish 
standards for home daycares and preschools as permitted uses within 
residential zones. This zoning text amendment would be effective across 
all Residential Zones in Clearfield City. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. Hold Public Hearing as noticed.  
2. Consider amended language provided by staff.  
3. Move to Approve Ordinance No. 2014-23 approving ZTA 1409-0006, an amendment to 

Title 11, Chapter 8, Chapter 9, and Chapter 13 to establish standards for home daycares 
and preschools as permitted uses within residential zones based on the findings and 
discussion in the Staff Report. 

 
ANALYSIS 
Clearfield City Planning Commission discussed the Zoning Text Amendment on August 6, 2014 
and September 10, 2014. A public hearing was held on October 1, 2014, where the Planning 
Commission took action making a recommendation for approval of ZTA 1409-0006 based on 
discussion and findings in the staff report. 
 
Background 
Currently, the review body for all Conditional Use Permits is the Planning Commission. While 
the requirement to bring all Conditional Use Permits to the Planning Commission has helped 
drive quality standards, it can become a time burden on the Planning Commission to review 
very minor items that are required based on the current procedures. Also, from the applicant’s 
perspective waiting for the Planning Commission to review what seems to be a very minor or 
insignificant project can be frustrating. During a discussion, held by the Planning Commission, 
on August 6, 2014 and September 10, 2014, language was to be created and brought before 
the commissioner’s for their review and recommendations. A public hearing was held on 
October 1, 2014, where the drafted language was presented to and approved by the Planning 
Commission.  
 
Proposed Changes 
Staff is proposing a change to the Agriculture and Residential sections of the City Code, which 
would change the classification of home daycares and preschools from a conditional use to a 



ZTA 1409-0006 Amendments to Home Daycares/Preschools 
 28 OCTOBER 2014 City Council Meeting 

 - 2 of 3 - 

permitted use within Title 11, Chapter 8 and Chapter 9 Residential Zones. As part of this 
change, language would be adopted and codified in Title 11, Chapter 13 Supplementary 
Regulations, to require additional documents be submitted for obtaining approval for this 
particular type of business.  
 
Proposed Ordinance Changes/Additions 
Staff would propose the following additions and amendments to Title 11, Chapter 8 & Chapter 9 
Residential Zones and Chapter 13 Supplementary Regulations 
 
Title 11, Chapter 8 and Chapter 9  
RESIDENTIAL ZONES (AMENDED LANGUAGE) 
 
The amendments include reclassifying “Daycares, residential” and “Preschools, residential” from 
a Conditional Use to a Permitted Use within the A-1, A-2, R-1-9, R-1-8, R-1-6, R-2, R-3 and R-
1-Open zones.  (Currently these types of businesses are not allowed in the R-M zone and 
amendments to this zone are not being requested at this time.) 
 
Title 11, Chapter 13   
SUPPLEMENTARY REGULATIONS (NEW LANGUAGE TO BE ADDED) 
 
11-13-32:  RESIDENTIAL DAYCARES AND PRESCHOOLS: 
 

A. Drop-off/Pick-up Plans: Applicant shall submit a drop-off and pick-up schedule, subject 
to the approval by the City Zoning Administrator, with staggered times proposed in order 
to mitigate traffic impacts. If applicant is requesting approval for a home preschool, that 
holds more than one class per day, the ending time of the first class to the beginning 
time of the second class shall be scheduled at least one hour apart, to prevent 
overlapping times of pick-up and drop-off of students. 

 
B. Traffic Flow: Applicant shall submit a copy of the traffic flow plan, subject to approval by 

the City Zoning Administrator. 
 

C. Outdoor Environment: There shall be an outdoor play area for children that is safely 
accessible to children. Enclosed and installed to the satisfaction of State of Utah 
Licensing Division.  

 
D. If the Zoning Administrator determines that an application needs further interpretation, 

he may request planning commission review of the approval. 
 
Public Comment 
No public comment has been received to date. 
 
FINDINGS 
 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
Clearfield Land Use Ordinance Section §11-6-3 establishes the following findings the Planning 
Commission shall make to approve Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments.  The findings and 
staff’s evaluation are outlined below:  
 

  Review Consideration Staff Analysis 



ZTA 1409-0006 Amendments to Home Daycares/Preschools 
 28 OCTOBER 2014 City Council Meeting 

 - 3 of 3 - 

1) 
The proposed amendment is in 
accordance with the General Plan and 
Map; or 

 
The proposed text amendment is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the Land Use Element of the City’s 
General Plan.  It will assist in streamlining the review 
and approval process for these types of businesses, 
while maintain necessary standards. 

2) 

 
Changed conditions make the 
proposed amendment necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of this Title. 

Staff requests these changes to help streamline the 
review and approval process for these types of 
businesses. 

 
 



 

    
 

 
 

 

City Council 
 STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 
TO:    Mayor Shepherd, City Council, and Executive Staff  
 
FROM:  Scott A. Hess 
   Development Services Manager 

scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org (801) 525-2785 
 

MEETING DATE: October 28, 2014  
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing, Discussion and Possible Action on GPA 1410-0002: A 

request by Con Wilcox for a General Plan Amendment to amend future 
land uses on property located at approximately 919 W. 1600 S. (TIN: 12-
391-0008, 12-391-0009) from Commercial to Manufacturing.  

  
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. Consider Planning Commission Recommendation 
2. Consider information presented by Staff and Applicant 
3. Move to either a) Approve the General Plan Amendment as presented; b) approve an 

alternative amendment; of c) Deny the amendment 
 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
Background 
 
The proposal includes a request for approximately 1.31 acres to be reclassified in the General 
Plan Future Land Use Map from Commercial to Manufacturing with the intent to construct a new 
structure for warehouse and distribution style use. The property is currently two individual 
parcels. Depending on the site plan for the potential M-1 zoned use, the property owner may 
choose to combine the two properties into one. An application for rezone from Commercial (C-2) 
to Manufacturing (M-1) has been made in addition to this request.  
 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
 
In a special meeting of the Clearfield City Planning Commission on October 15, 2014, this item 
was recommended for denial to the City Council based on the staff report and discussion at the 
meeting. 
 
 

mailto:scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org


GPA 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms General Plan Amendment Commercial to Manufacturing 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

2 

 
 
General Plan Map Amendment Information: 
 
Current General Plan Map: Parcels in question have been outlined in blue. 
 

  
 
General Plan Map Amendment Requested: Parcels in question have been highlighted blue to 
indicate the change to Manufacturing designation. 

 
 
 
 
 



GPA 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms General Plan Amendment Commercial to Manufacturing 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

3 

 
Accurate property map showing all areas to be included in the amendment and all properties 
immediately adjacent to the proposed amendment area. Parcels in question have been 
highlighted blue to indicate future Manufacturing use.  
 

 
 
 
General Plan and Zoning 
A request to change the land use classification in the General Plan from Commercial to 
Manufacturing is generally consistent with the goals and policies of the City’s General Plan, 
outside of number 14 indicated below. Clearfield City’s General Plan “Land Use Guidelines” 
number 2 and 10 state: 
 

2. The relationship of planned land uses should reflect consideration of existing 
development, environmental conditions, service and transportation needs, and fiscal 
impacts. 

10. Commercial and Manufacturing uses should be highly accessible, clustered near the 
center of their service areas, and developed in harmony with the uses and character of 
surrounding districts. 

12. The few remaining vacant properties in the City should be developed at their highest and 
best use to maximize their value to the landowner and the City.  

14. Manufacturing and industrial activities should be limited to those areas already zoned for 
such uses.  

 
The request for additional Manufacturing land is specifically addressed in the General Plan, 
however the word “should” indicates that there may be some flexibility. Careful consideration of 
surrounding uses and relationship between uses is discussed in more detail in the Land Use 
Guidelines of the General Plan. While Land Use Guideline number 12 instructs the City to 
consider the highest and best use for vacant properties, Land Use Guideline 14 indicated a 
reluctance for allowing further rezones to Manufacturing.  



GPA 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms General Plan Amendment Commercial to Manufacturing 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

4 

 
 
This specific request is to change the current General Plan designation and zoning in order to 
utilize the property at what the applicant asserts is its highest and best use. The property has 
been marketed as Commercial for many years without serious interest from tenants. The 
location does not have primary frontage along a commercial corridor, and it may be a 
reasonable assumption that this property could continue to sit vacant if it remains zoned and 
master planned commercial. Amending the land use to Manufacturing has its own drawbacks, 
but one upside is that the property becomes marketable to a different classification of users and 
buyers.  
 
The property owner and potential buyer would like to invest in Clearfield within an already 
established commercial area of the City, but with a use that best fits into the M-1 manufacturing 
zone. The applicant desires utilizing this property to its best and highest use. 
 
Alternative Staff Recommendation 
Staff has had an opportunity to contemplate additional options which may be available in the 
time between the Planning Commission’s consideration and the current City Council meeting, 
and offers an alternative direction for the City Council’s review and consideration. Specifically, 
the Applicant’s General Plan Amendment request for this area could be altered to move towards 
a “Business Park” future use, rather than Manufacturing. The Business Park use is described in 
the General Plan as an area where the “Primary purpose is job creation in an attractive office / 
light manufacturing / commercial environment.” Business Park allows for C-1, C-2, and M-1 
zoning designations. 
 
Zoning Consistency 
The property owner has made a request to change the zoning of this property from C-2 
(Commercial) to M-1 (Manufacturing). Staff comments and findings are included in a separate 
item for the 10-28-2014 City Council agenda.  
 
In response to the Planning Commission comments regarding the proposed future use of this 
property, the applicant has prepared a Declaration that provides for limitations of use of this 
property under a Manufacturing classification. Specifics of that Declaration will be discussed in 
the applicant’s request for Rezone from C-2 to M-1.   
 
Public Comment 
No public comment has been received to date. 
 
 
FINDINGS 
 
General Plan Map Amendment 
Clearfield Land Use Ordinance Section 11-6-4 establishes the procedure the Planning 
Commission and City Council shall use to review a Petition for Change to General Plan or 
General Plan Maps.  The procedure and staff’s evaluation are outlined below:  
 
 
 

  Review Consideration Staff Analysis 



GPA 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms General Plan Amendment Commercial to Manufacturing 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

5 

 

1)  Designation of the specific text or 
map amendment desired. 

 
Staff has provided the current map along with the 
desired changes within the report outlined above.  
 

2)  

 
Reason and Justification for such 
change. 
 

 
The property is currently master planned commercial as 
well as zoned commercial. The property has sat vacant 
for many years while being marketed for Commercial 
Use. The property is currently under contract with a 
warehouse/distribution use, and that land use best fits in 
the Manufacturing M-1 zoning district. The history of this 
property sitting vacant and on the market would suggest 
that Commercial is not the highest and best use of the 
property, and that a change of zoning and land use 
classification in the General Plan is warranted. Careful 
consideration should be taken for how this potential use 
fits in with the surrounding development. 
 
There is potential to reclassify the property as Business 
Park within the General Plan. The description of 
Business Park better suits the proposal for a light 
industrial / small distribution use. The General Plan 
designation of Business Park would allow for the C-1, C-
2, and M-1 zoning designations.  
 

3) A draft of the proposed text or map 
amendment. 

 
This has been provided within the report outlined above. 
Should the City Council accept the change to the 
General Plan, Clearfield City GIS maps will be changed 
accordingly to reflect the update. 
 

4) 

 
An accurate property map showing 
all areas to be included in the 
amendment and all properties 
immediately adjacent to the 
proposed amendment area. 
 

Property Map has been provided through the GIS 
system in order to provide the most current map 
available. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. 2010 Future Land Use Map of the General Plan 
 



E 200 S

S 1
00

0 E

W 200 S

W 800 N

N 
10

00
 W

E 700 S

S 1
00

0 W

E 300 N

W 700 S

15
00

 E

E 1400 S

S M
AI

N 
ST

S INDUSTRIAL PKWY

S FRONTAGE RD

W CE
NT

ER
 ST

S LEGEND HILLS DR

N 800 W

S 1
50

0 E

N 
12

00
 W

S 1
00

0 E

N 
10

00
 W W 800 N

S 1
00

0 E

W 800 N

S M
AI

N 
ST

S 5TH ST

S 13TH ST

E E ST

S 11TH ST

W F ST

S 7TH ST

E D ST

S 3RD ST

S 16TH STS 9TH ST

W H ST

W G ST
S 5

00
 W

N 
50

0 W

W C ST

S 875 E

S 7
75

 W

S 5
50

 E

W 150 S

W 25 N

S 900 E

W 25 S

W B ST

W 2300 S

S 5
75

 E

N 
20

0 W

W 1045 S

W 650 N

E 2200 S

N ANN ST

S 1ST ST

ARSENAL RD

E 100 N

S 2
75

 E

W 1900 S

N 
36

0 W

E 1900 S

LIBERTY WY

S 2
25

 E

E 1100 S

E 450 S

W 750 N

S 1150 WW 975 S

W 600 N

W 450 N

N 
30

0 E

S 1
35

0 W

S 150 W

N BARLOW ST

E CENTER STN 
12

50
 W

S 7
50

 E

MINUTEMAN WY

S 7
25

 E

W A ST

S 1
20

0 E

S 200 E

W 725 N

E 2025 S

S 300 W

E 800 S

S 1
00

0 E

E 400 S

W 375 N

E 2000 S

N 1400 W

W 1980 S

E 2450 S

S 525 W

E 1450 S

E 2050 S

E 442 S

W 75 S

W 700 S

W 250 N

W 525 N

S 7
00

 E

S 4
00

 E

S 4
50

 E

S 3
50

 E

N 
13

50
 W

S D
EP

OT
 S

T

S 5
0 W

E 2400 S

E 600 S

N 
70

0 W

N PACIFIC ST

E 1000 S

S 6
50

 E

S 1
25

0 E

W 700 N

E 500 S

W 2200 S

W 300 N

S 1
48

0 W

S 1300 W

E 925 S

S 1
45

0 W

W 1800 S

N 
12

00
 W

E VALHALLA DR

S JENNY LN

N FERN DR

S 5
00

 E

E 350 S

M ST

N TERRACE DR

LIB
ER

TY
 S

T

N VINE ST

W 550 N

S 1
28

0 W

E 900 S

N 
10

50
 W

W 200 S

E 2275 S

S 1
42

5 W

E 2225 S

S 1100 W

E 1225 S

N BRUCE ST

E 1800 S

S 490 E

W 750 S

S 4
50

 W

S 4
00

 W

W 400 N

E MAPLE ST

W 950 S

E 200 S

W 200 N

CONGRESS

W 350 N

S 1250 W

E 2325 S

W 1850 S

S 100 W

N 
72

5 W
N 

80
0 W

S 1
17

5 E

S 800 E
S 825 E

16
50

 E

E 1050 S

S 1
07

5 E

S 17
5 W

W 550 S

W 2225 S

S 1
50

0 E

S 75 E

S W DEPOT ST

W 1600 S

E 300 S

N 
13

00
 W

E 250 S

W 1100 S

S 950 E

W 1200 S

GU
M 

ST

N 
40

0 W

N 
50

0 E

S 9
00

 W

S 3
50

 W

E ROSS DR

W 90 N

E 2600 S

W 225 N

W 180 N

N 
75

 W

YO
RK

TO
W

N 
WY

N KERSH DR

E 225 S

W 75 N
W 150 N

N 
82

5 W

NORTH LIBERTY ST

S KATIE'S WY

E 2675 S

N LYNWOOD DR

S 5
0 E

E 2100 S

E 1150 S

WA
RD

LE
IG

H 
RD

S 125 W

W 2500 S

S 3
75

 E

LEXINGTON W
Y

HALE WY

S 4
25

 W

W 325 N

N VICKIE LN

WASHINGTON ST

PRINCETON

S LOCUST

CONSTITUTION WY

6TH ST

W 2150 S

N 
11

00
 W

CONCORD WY

S 1
00

 E

NORTH VILL DR

CAMBRIDGE LN

E 1300 S

E SOUTH LAKEVIEW DR

N 
12

75
 W

E NORTH LAKEVIEW DR

E M
AR

ILY
N 

DR

W 775 N

E 750 S

SOUTH VILLA DR

HAMILTON DR

S 1
60

0 E

E 1750 S

S 1125 E

W 100 N

E 1250 S

N 
75

0 W

N 
77

5 W

YORKTOWN ST

S BIRCH ST

W 500 N

N 
30

0 W

E 830 S

SARATOGA ST

E CHELEMES WAY

E 950 S

S 1075 W

AIRLANE DR

E 500 N

W 275 N

E 1850 S

S L
IN

DE
N

E 1975 S

TRUMAN CIR

E 2150 S

S 1
65

0 E

S 1025 W

S 1
32

5 W

W 2400 S

E 1950 S

FRANKLIN ST

S M
AI

N 
ST

E 1925 S

W 2050 S S C
HE

LE
ME

S W
AY

CH
AR

LE
ST

OW
N 

ST

E VALLEY VIEW

S 6
00

 E

N 
10

0 W

W 430 N

N SYCAMORE ST

E 1400 S

S TERRACE DR

N 650 W

N 
62

5 W
900 S

S 1
05

0 W

W 2100 S

N 450 W

S PACIFIC ST

E 288 S

S 3
25

 W

E 248 S

E 250 N

E 2500 S

ALABAMA ST

E 2250 S

E 650 N

W ASPEN GROVE

S 1
70

0 E

S Valhalla Dr

S 1050 E

S BIRCH CIR

N 
85

0 W

N CHURCH CIR

W WILLOW WY

S 6
50

 W

COLONY LP

N 
67

5 W

S 9
75

 W

E APT

E 1200 S

E 450 S

N 650 W

W 200 N

W C ST

N 
13

00
 W

E 1000 S

W 725 N

E 350 S

W B ST

W 25 N

N 
82

5 W

S 5
00

 E

N 
12

75
 W

W 650 N

W 550 N

W 200 N

S 5
0 E

W 150 S

S 950 E

S 400 W

S 4
00

 E

S 5
00

 E

N 
11

00
 W

N 
82

5 W

S 1
00

 E

E 1100 S

E 1800 S

S 3
00

 W

S 3
50

 ES 1
00

 W

S 500 W

E 2100 S

N 
20

0 W

W 25 S

W 75 N

W 700 N

S 7
00

 E

W 600 N

W 700 N

W 300 N

W 25 N

W 2400 S

W 450 N

W 75 N

E 1925 S

E 1450 S

W 400 N

S 2
00

 E

E 350 S

W 750 S

W 150 N

W 600 N

E 350 S

W 550 N

W 200 N

N 
12

00
 W

S 4
50

 W

W 700 S

N 
10

0 W

N 
10

50
 W

N 625 W

W 200 S

N 
40

0 W

S 8
00

 E

WARDLEIGH RD

W 70
0 S

N 
12

50
 W

W 75 S

W 700 N

S 725 E

N 
12

50
 W

W 700 N

N 
12

00
 W

S 350 W

N 
13

50
 W

E 500 S

E 1150 S

E 2200 S

E 1900 S

S 400 E

S 5
00

 E

W 75 N

S 2
00

 E

W 200 S

S I15

N I15

E 700 S

W 300 N

E 1700 S

S STATE ST
W 1700 S

EXT. 335

N 
MA

IN
 ST

EXT. 334

E HWY 193

E 550 S

E 650 N

EXT. 332

W 250 N

GOLDSTONE PL

E 1750 S

E 1100 S

W 275 N

W HWY 193

S 125 E

EXT. 334

N 
MA

IN
 ST

W 1700 S

W 300 N

EXT. 335

S STATE ST

L a y t o n

S y r a c u s e

H i l l  A i r  F o r c e  B a s e
W e s t  P o i n t

C l i n t o n

 

L a y t o n

H i l l  A i r  F o r c e  B a s e

C l i n t o n
S o u t h  W e b e r

C L E A R F I E L D  C I T YC L E A R F I E L D  C I T Y

Future Land 
Use Map 

of the 
General Plan

2010 (b)

·
Data published 
05 October 2010

 
  

0 2,500 5,0001,250 Feet Annexation Policy PlanAnnexation Policy Plan

E x h i b i t  1  

0 1 20.5 Miles

Legend
Parcels
Buildings
City Boundary
Railroad

Streets
Private
Major
Minor

Proposed Land Use
Residential Area
Commercial Area
Mixed Use
Business Park
Manufacturing Area
Falcon HIll
Hill AFB

L a y t o n



 

    
 

 
 

 

City Council 
 STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 
TO:    Mayor Shepherd, City Council, and Executive Staff 
 
FROM:  Scott A. Hess 
   Development Services Manager 

scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org (801) 525-2785 
 

MEETING DATE: October 28, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing, Discussion and Possible Action on RZN 1410-0002: A 

request by Con Wilcox for a rezone on property located at approximately 
919 W. 1600 S. (TIN: 12-391-0008, 12-391-0009) from Commercial (C-2) 
to Manufacturing (M-1) 

 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

1. Consider Planning Commission Recommendation 
2. Consider information presented by Staff and Applicant 
3. Move to a) approve rezone as presented by the Applicant; b) approve the rezone with 

amendments; or c) deny the rezone  
 
 
 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

 
 

Project Information 
Project Name Wilcox Rezone 
Site Location Approx. 919 W. 1600 S. 
Tax ID Number Multiple  Parcels (12-391-0008, 12-391-0009) 
Applicant  Con Wilcox 
Owner Con Wilcox 
Proposed Actions Rezone Request – Zoning Map Amendment 
Current Zoning C-2 (Commercial)  
Proposed Zoning M-1 (Manufacturing) 
Current Land Use Classification Commercial – Requested General Plan Amendment 
Gross Site Area  1.31 Acres 

mailto:scott.hess@clearfieldcity.org


RZN 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to M-1 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

2 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ANALYSIS 
 
Background 
 
The proposal includes a request for approximately 1.31 acres to be rezoned from C-2 
(Commercial) to M-1 (Manufacturing) with the intent to construct a new structure for warehouse 
and distribution style use. The property is currently two individual parcels. Depending on the site 
plan for the potential M-1 zoned use, the property owner may choose to combine the two 
properties into one. An application for General Plan Amendment as well as for the requested 
rezone was previously made to the Planning Commission.  
 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
 
In a special meeting of the Clearfield City Planning Commission on October 15, 2014, this item 
was recommended for denial to the City Council. Based upon that decision, as well as the 
Planning Commission’s decision on the proposed General Plan amendment, it appears that the 
Commission was not comfortable with the potential for all Manufacturing (M-1) uses being 
allowed on the property. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Surrounding Properties and Uses: Current Zoning District Comprehensive Plan  
Land Use Classification 

North 

 
Empty available 
Commercial Lots – Wilcox 
Farms Subdivision 
 

 
C-2 (Commercial) 

 
Commercial  

East 
 
Anderson Tire Company 
 

 
C-2 (Commercial) 

 
Commercial 

South     
 
West Antelope Commercial 
Plaza 
 

C-2 (Commercial) Commercial 

West 
 
Reese Holdings 
Commercial Plaza 
 

C-2 (Commercial) Commercial 



RZN 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to M-1 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

3 

 
Zoning Map Amendment Information: 
Current Clearfield City Zoning Map: Parcels in question have been outlined in blue. The purple 
color is C-2 (Commercial) zoning, and the green is A-1 (Agricultural). 

 
 
Clearfield City Zoning Map Amendment Requested: Parcels in question have been highlighted 
blue to indicate the change from C-2 (Commercial) to M-1 (Manufacturing). 

 
 



RZN 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to M-1 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

4 

 
 
Master Plan and Zoning 
The property owner has made a request to change the Clearfield City General Plan in order to 
be consistent with this rezone request. Staff comments and findings can be found in a separate 
item of the October 28, 2014 City Council Packet, and has been provided as a complete 
package for review. 
 
Rezoning this area to Manufacturing may come with some un-intended consequences. Staff is 
not overly concerned with the applicant’s proposed use; however, from a long range planning 
standpoint, creating an island of M-1 surrounded by C-2 may cause additional hardships down 
the line. If the property is zoned M-1, then it is entitled to receive consideration for any permitted 
and/or conditional use within the M-1 zone. Another potential consideration is that the 
applicant’s long range vision for the property has been to have some form of residential 
component north of the commercial area. Manufacturing and residential uses are two of the 
least compatible types of uses, and a rezone may be detrimental to any future rezone or 
entitlement of the rear portions of property to residential.  
 
In general, spot zoning is not a favorable practice, and can create hardships for property owners 
within varying zones when conflicts arise. So long as the uses within the C-2 and abutting M-1 
zones remain relatively compatible, this rezone may not be objectionable. However, it is the 
potential for the unknown which causes staff some concern regarding this rezone and its long-
term effects in the future.  In order to limit immediate negative consequences, Staff would 
recommend that this rezone, if considered for approval by the City Council, be conditioned on 
generally conforming to the proposed Site Plan and use proposed with this rezone request. 
Please understand however, that any such condition may not be prospectively enforceable in 
the future for other applicants/uses. A copy of the Site Plan has been provided for the Planning 
Commission’s consideration. 
 
Alternative Staff Recommendation 
Based on discussion by the Clearfield City Planning Commission regarding the proposed use, 
the applicant has provided the City with a “Declaration of Use Restriction.” This document would 
be recorded against the property, and would serve to limit the most objectionable uses within 
the M-1 zone in order to protect the City against future unintended consequences of a rezone 
from C-2 to M-1 in this area. The prohibited uses listed in the document are: Manufacturing, 
Landscape supply yards, Sexually oriented business, Tattoo or body piercing establishments, 
and any other uses which create traffic hazards; hazardous waste; or excessive noise, dust, 
fumes, odors, smoke, vapor, or vibration. This binding document recorded against the property 
would be an additional protection for the City to help assure that future uses in this area would 
be compatible with the developed commercial uses within the surrounding C-2 zone. Should the 
City Council consider approving this rezone request, staff would recommend that a condition of 
approval be included to record the Declaration of Use Restriction (as approved by the City 
Council) against the property prior to issuance of building permits for new uses within the 
rezoned property.  
 
Zoning Map Amendment 
The basic zoning and development standards can be met for this request. The lot standards in 
the M-1 zone require the following: minimum 7,000 square feet, 50’ minimum frontage, and 60’ 
minimum lot width.  
 
Public Comment 
No public comment has been received to date. 



RZN 1410-0002 Wilcox Farms Rezone C-2 to M-1 
OCT 28 2014 City Council Meeting 

5 

 
FINDINGS 
 
Zoning Map Amendment 
Clearfield Land Use Ordinance Section 11-6-3 establishes the following findings the Planning 
Commission and City Council shall make to approve Zoning Map Amendments. The findings 
and staff’s evaluation are outlined below:  
 

  Review Consideration Staff Analysis 

1)  
The proposed amendment is in 
accordance with the General Plan and 
Map; or 

 
Goal 1 of the Land Use Element states “Maintain 
consistency between the City’s Land Use Ordinance 
and the General Plan”.  A General Plan Amendment 
from Commercial to Manufacturing for these parcels has 
been requested by the applicant and considered by the 
Planning Commission and City Council. Rezoning 
property in accordance with amendments to the General 
Plan meets the purposes and intent of Clearfield City’s 
General Plan Land Use Element.  
 

2)  

 
Changed conditions make the 
proposed amendment necessary to 
fulfill the purposes of this Title. 
 

The applicant’s inability to sell this parcel for 
Commercial use for many years, and a current offer 
from a warehouse/distribution use have prompted the 
request for a rezone. 

 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Site Plan for proposed warehouse/distribution use within these parcels.  
2. Declaration of Use Restriction 



PROPERTY LINE  340.88'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

1
7

3
.6

6
'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

1
6

7
.0

4
'

PROPERTY LINE  251.51'

SOD/ PLANTING
TURF-TYPE
TALL FESCUE

D1 D2 D1

D2

D2

D1E1 E1

SOD/ PLANTING
TURF-TYPE
TALL FESCUE

L1.1

PROVIDE LINE ITEM BID FOR LANDSCAPE.

DECIDUOUS TREES
- MIN. 2" CALIPER FOR STREET TREES

* MEASURED FROM 4'-0" ABOVE GRADE

2H:1V MAXIMUM SLOPE IN LANDSCAPED AREAS

SHADEMASTER HONEYLOCUST3D1
D2

P.M.M. SLOW MOUND MUGO PINE
JUNIPER/BLUE STAR
POTENTILLA

4
4

S2
S3

4S1

MIN. 2" CALIPER
TREES (DECIDUOUS)

SHRUBS (RANDOMIZE PLANTING)
5 GAL
5 GAL
5 GAL

TYPE SIZEQNTY NAME

22TOTAL

SKYLINE HONEYLOCUST3 MIN. 2" CALIPER

FALSE SPIERA5S4 5 GAL
JUNIPER/SEA GREENS5 5 5 GAL

NOTES FOR CONTRACTOR:

1.  ALL IRRIGATION HEADS TO HAVE WATER SAVING, LOW ANGLE NOZZLES
2.  CONTROLLER TO PROVIDE SEPARATE ZONES, WATER BUDGETING, MULTIPLE START
    TIMES AND MEET ALL MANUF. REQUIREMENTS FOR OUTDOOR INSTALLATION.
3.  ALL IRRIGATION WIRING TO MEET IBC REQUIREMENTS.
4.  ALL SPRINKLERS TO HAVE MATCH PRECIPITATION RATES
5.  USE DRIP IRRIGATION FOR ALL TREES AND SHRUBS
6.  ALL IRRIGATION LINES TO HAVE WINTERIZATION BLOW-OUTS

LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE THE
FOLLOWING PIPE SIZES ARE NOT EXCEEDED:

 3/4 "       12 GPM
1"           20 GPM
1 1/2 "      26 GPM

ALL CONDUITS UNDER CONCRETE MUST BE
A MINIMUM 4".  SEE DETAILS FOR TRENCHING DEPTHS.

WATER CONSERVATION PLAN:

1.  PLANNING AND DESIGN--PLANTINGS ARE GROUPED TOGETHER.

2.  LOW WATER USING PLANTS--PLANTS SELECTED FOR DROUGHT TOLERANCE
3.  SOIL AMENDMENTS--CONTRACTOR TO ADD 5% NUTRI-MULCH IN PLANTER BEDS.
4.  USE ORGANIC MULCH-BARK AND/OR SHREDDED PLANT MATERIAL AND COMPOST
5.  EFFICIENT IRRIGATION--CONTRACTOR TO CREATE HYDROZONES  AND ISOLATE WATER USAGE.
6.  MAINTENANCE--LAWN AREAS ARE EASY TO MAINTAIN AND PLANTINGS ARE GROUPED.

2E1
EVERGREEN TREES

MIN. 5' HEIGHTUTAH JUNIPER

SOD/PLANTING TURF-TYPE TALL FESCUE

LECKINGTON
BUILDING

919 WEST
1600 SOUTH

CLEARFIELD, UTAHGROSS BUILDING AREA
INCLUDING PROPOSED

8,000 SF

TOTAL
LANDSCAPED AREA

PROJECT SUMMARY

3,084 SF
(10.7%)

GROSS LAND AREA
0.662 ACRES
28,845 SF

LOT 8



LANDSCAPE

EXIST. SIDEWALK

NEW TRASH
ENCLOSURE

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

NEW CONC. SIDEWALK

NEW CONC. SIDEWALK

EXIST. SIDEWALK NEW CONC. SIDEWALK

PROPERTY LINE  340.88'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

1
7

3
.6

6
'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  

1
6

7
.0

4
'

PROPERTY LINE  251.51'

4" PAINTED PARKING
STRIPING (TYPICAL)

ASPHALT PAVING
ON ROAD BASE
SEE SOILS REPORT.

SLOPE NOT TO EXCEED 1:48
AT ACCESSIBLE PARKING

PROVIDE METAL SIGN FOR
ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACE PER ADAAG. 4.6.4.

RETENTION
AREA

NEW 18" THICK CONC.
COORD. EXACT SIZE
AND LOCATION
FIELD DETERMINE

8.00' 8.00' 8.00'

9
.0

0
'

T
Y

P
.

9.00' TYP.

LANDSCAPE

3
5
.0

0
'

80.00' 68.00'
0.50'
9.45'145.18'

2
0
.0

0
'

6
.0

0
'

1
0
0
.0

0
'

1
3
.2

2
'

2
2
.0

0
'

0
.5

0
'

5
.3

2
'

3
5
.0

0
'

35.00'

4.00'
30.00'

29.97'

4
0
.1

8
'

22.00'

20.00'

EASEMENT

EASEMENT

340.41'

1
6
7
.0

4
'

10.7%PERCENTAGE OF
LANDSCAPED AREA

GROSS LAND AREA

GROSS BUILDING AREA

NUMBER OF PARKING
SPACES REQUIRED

INCLUDING PROPOSED

0.662 ACRES
28,845 SF

8,000 SF

16

DESCRIPTION.
AND PROPERTY BOUNDARY
GRADING, SPOT ELEVATIONS,
BY ENGINEER FOR DRAINAGE,
SEE SITE PLANS PROVIDED

THAT EXCEED 6%.

REQUIREMENTS OF 2%.  NOTIFY
REPRESENT MINIMUM GRADING
ALL GRADING ELEVATIONS SHOWN

ARCHITECT OF NEW GRADES

SD.1

PROJECT SUMMARY

SITE PLAN

SAMUEL J.
BRADY

ARCHITECTS

LECKINGTON
BUILDING

919 WEST
1600 SOUTH

CLEARFIELD, UTAH

NUMBER OF PARKING
SPACES PROVIDED

16

GROSS LAND AREA
0.659 ACRES
28,702 SF

LOT 8

LOT 9

LAND TO BUILDING
RATIO

3.61



LANDSCAPE

EXIST. SIDEWALK

NEW TRASH
ENCLOSURE

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E

NEW CONC. SIDEWALK

NEW CONC. SIDEWALK

EXIST. SIDEWALK NEW CONC. SIDEWALK

PROPERTY LINE  340.88'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  
1
7
3
.6

6
'

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 L
IN

E
  
1
6
7
.0

4
'

PROPERTY LINE  251.51'

4" PAINTED PARKING
STRIPING (TYPICAL)

ASPHALT PAVING
ON ROAD BASE
SEE SOILS REPORT.

SLOPE NOT TO EXCEED 1:48
AT ACCESSIBLE PARKING

PROVIDE METAL SIGN FOR
ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACE PER ADAAG. 4.6.4.

RETENTION
AREA

NEW 18" THICK CONC.
COORD. EXACT SIZE
AND LOCATION
FIELD DETERMINE

8.00' 8.00' 8.00'

9
.0

0
'

T
Y

P
.

9.00' TYP.

LANDSCAPE

3
5
.0

0
'

80.00' 68.00'
0.50'

9.45'145.18'

2
0
.0

0
'

6
.0

0
'

1
0
0
.0

0
'

1
3
.2

2
'

2
2
.0

0
'

0
.5

0
'

5
.3

2
'

3
5
.0

0
'

35.00'

4.00'
30.00'

29.97'

4
0
.1

8
'

22.00'

20.00'

EASEMENT

EASEMENT

340.41'

1
6
7
.0

4
'

SD.2

VICINITY MAP

SAMUEL J.
BRADY

ARCHITECTS

LECKINGTON
BUILDING

919 WEST
1600 SOUTH

CLEARFIELD, UTAH



8
0
'-
0
"

(3) 9'-0" X 10'-0"
DOCK DOORS

(1) 14'-0" X 16'-0"
OVERHEAD DOOR

100'-0"

12"
MIN.

SERVICE
SINK

DOCK AREA
HEIGHT 48" A.F.F. SHOWER

R
A

M
P

 D
O

W
N

1
:1

2
 S

L
O

P
E

42" HT.
GUARDRAIL

42" HT.
GUARDRAIL

COUNTER FOR PUBLIC
ACCESS TO HAVE A 34" HT.
MAX. X 36" W AREA MIN.
FOR ACCESSIBILITY.

34" HT.
HANDRAIL

R
A

M
P

 D
O

W
N

1
:1

2
 S

L
O

P
E

LANDING

COUNTER FOR PUBLIC
ACCESS TO HAVE A 34" HT.
MAX. X 36" W AREA MIN.
FOR ACCESSIBILITY.

LECKINGTON
BUILDING

A1.1

SAMUEL J.
BRADY

ARCHITECTS

919 WEST
1600 SOUTH

CLEARFIELD, UTAH

FLOOR PLAN

5/8" GYPSUM BOARD (TYPE 'X') EACH SIDE
NEW 6" 20 GAUGE METAL STUDS @ 24" O.C. W/

5/8" GYPSUM BOARD (TYPE 'X') EACH SIDE
NEW 3-5/8" 25 GAUGE METAL STUDS @ 24" O.C. W/

GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL CHALK-LINE ALL
NEW WALLS FOR ARCHITECT'S APPROVAL, PRIOR
TO ANY NEW CONSTRUCTION, TO INSURE THAT
SPACE BUILD-OUT MEETS TENANT REQUIREMENTS.

EXTEND TO ROOF DECK.
5/8" GYPSUM BOARD (TYPE 'X') EACH SIDE
NEW 6" 20 GAUGE METAL STUDS @ 24" O.C. W/

WALL TYPES

METAL PANEL SYSTEM
W/ 3-5/8" 25 GAUGE METAL STUDS @ 16" O.C. W/
5/8" TYPE 'X' GYPSUM BOARD ONE SIDE W/ R-11
BATT INSULATION. EXTEND TO 12'-0" A.F.F. U.N.O

METAL PANEL SYSTEM



4
8
"

48"48"

4
8
"

4
8
"

9'-0"

1
0
'-
0
"

4
8
"

9'-0"

4
8
"

9'-0"

1
0
'-
0
"

1
0
'-
0
"

48"

4
8
"

48"

A3.1

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

SAMUEL J.
BRADY

ARCHITECTS

LECKINGTON
BUILDING

919 WEST
1600 SOUTH

CLEARFIELD, UTAH

SQUARE FOOTAGE: 8,042 S.F.

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION: TYPE II-B



CLEARFIELD CITY ORDINANCE 2014-23 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 11 OF THE CLEARFIELD CITY CODE 
PERTAINING TO RESIDENTIAL DAYCARES AND PRESCHOOLS 
 
PREAMBLE:  This Ordinance amends Title 11, Chapters 8A, 8B, 9A, 9B, 9C, 9D, 9E, 9G, and 

13 of the Clearfield City Code addressing residential daycares and preschools.       
  
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL: 

 
Section 1. Enactment:   
 
Title 11, Chapters 8A, 8B, 9A, 9B, 9C, 9D, 9E, and 9G of the Clearfield City Code are hereby 
amended by changing both “Daycares, residential” and “Preschools, residential” from 
conditional uses in each of those chapters to permitted uses in each of those chapters 
respectively. 
 
Title 11, Chapter 13 of the Clearfield City Code is hereby amended by adding Section 32 to read 
as follows: 
 
11-13-32: RESIDENTIAL DAYCARES AND PRESCHOOLS: 
 
 

A. Drop-off/Pick-up Plans: Applicant shall submit a drop-off and pick-up schedule, subject 
to approval by the City Zoning Administrator, with staggered times proposed in order to 
mitigate traffic impacts. If applicant is requesting approval for a residential preschool that 
holds more than one class per day, the ending time of the first class to the beginning 
time of the second class shall be scheduled at least one hour apart to prevent 
overlapping times of pick-up and drop-off of students. 

 
B. Traffic Flow: Applicant shall submit a copy of the traffic flow plan, which shall be subject 

to approval by the City Zoning Administrator. 
 

C. Outdoor Environment: There shall be an outdoor play area for children that is safely 
accessible and which must be enclosed and installed to the satisfaction of State of Utah.  

 
D. If the Zoning Administrator determines that an application needs further interpretation, 

he may request Planning Commission review of the application. 
 
 
Section 2. Repealer:  Any provision or ordinances that are in conflict with this ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date:  These amendments shall become effective immediately upon 
passage and posted as prescribed by law. 
 
 
Passed and adopted by the Clearfield City Council this 28th day of October, 2014. 



 
      CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 

 
 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL 
 

 AYE:  
 
 NAY:  
   

2 
 



CLEARFIELD CITY ORDINANCE 2014-24 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 
 
PREAMBLE: This Ordinance changes the designated land use category in the Clearfield 

City General Plan from Commercial to Manufacturing for two parcels of 
property located at approximately 919 West and 939 West, 1600 South 
(TIN’s: 12-391-0008, 12-391-0009) in Clearfield.  

  
 WHEREAS, the abovementioned properties have been master planned for 
commercial type uses for at least the past fifteen years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the utilization of the properties for commercial uses hasn’t yet come 
to fruition, despite significant efforts to do so by the property owner/developer and the 
parcels have accordingly continued to sit vacant for a significant period of time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current owner desires to develop the properties for a proposed 
use which appears to be compatible with surrounding uses and is generally consistent 
with the goals, priorities, policies and overall intent of the City’s General Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current owner of the parcels has submitted a request for a 
General Plan Amendment changing the designated land use category for the properties 
from Commercial to Manufacturing in order to make development of the parcels viable; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the best and highest use for the said properties appears to be 
something other than strictly (C-1) or (C-2) Commercial uses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to allow something other than strictly commercial uses, the 
designated land use category for the properties in the City’s General Plan must be 
changed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after holding a duly noticed public hearing and carefully considering 
any public input provided, as well as the recommendation given by the Clearfield City 
Planning Commission, the Clearfield City Council publicly deliberated this matter and 
determined that changing the designated land use category on the Future Land Use Map 
of the City’s General Plan from Commercial to Manufacturing for the aforementioned 
properties is in the best interests of Clearfield City and its residents;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Clearfield City Council that: 

 
Section 1. General Plan Amendment: The designated future land use category for the 
properties located at approximately 919 West and 939 West, 1600 South (TIN’s: 12-391-
0008, 12-391-0009), lots 8 and 9 in the Wilcox Farms Amended subdivision in 
Clearfield, Utah is hereby changed from Commercial to Manufacturing and said change 



shall be incorporated into and reflected by the City’s General Plan and its Future Land 
Use Map. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
posting in three public places within Clearfield City. 
 
 
DATED this 28th day of October, 2014, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Clearfield City Council. 
 
 
 
      CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL  
 
 

AYE:   
 

NAY:   
 
EXCUSED:  



CLEARFIELD CITY ORDINANCE 2014-24 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CLEARFIELD CITY GENERAL PLAN 
 
PREAMBLE: This Ordinance changes the designated land use category in the Clearfield 

City General Plan from Commercial to Business Park for two parcels of 
property located at approximately 919 West and 939 West, 1600 South 
(TIN’s: 12-391-0008, 12-391-0009) in Clearfield.  

  
 WHEREAS, the abovementioned properties have been master planned for 
commercial type uses for at least the past fifteen years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the utilization of the properties for commercial uses hasn’t yet come 
to fruition, despite significant efforts to do so by the property owner/developer and the 
parcels have accordingly continued to sit vacant for a significant period of time; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current owner desires to develop the properties for a proposed 
use which appears to be compatible with surrounding uses and is generally consistent 
with the goals, priorities, policies and overall intent of the City’s General Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the current owner of the parcels submitted a request for a General 
Plan Amendment changing the designated land use category for the properties from 
Commercial to Manufacturing in order to make development of the parcels viable; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the best and highest use for the said properties appears to be 
something other than strictly (C-1) or (C-2) Commercial uses; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to allow something other than strictly commercial uses, the 
designated land use category for the properties in the City’s General Plan must be 
changed; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after holding a duly noticed public hearing and carefully considering 
the Applicant’s application, any public input provided, as well as the recommendation 
given by the Clearfield City Planning Commission, the Clearfield City Council publicly 
deliberated this matter and determined that changing the designated land use category on 
the Future Land Use Map of the City’s General Plan from Commercial to Business Park 
(rather than Manufacturing) for the aforementioned properties is in the best interests of 
Clearfield City and its residents;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the Clearfield City Council that: 

 
Section 1. General Plan Amendment: The designated future land use category for the 
properties located at approximately 919 West and 939 West, 1600 South (TIN’s: 12-391-
0008, 12-391-0009), lots 8 and 9 in the Wilcox Farms Amended subdivision in 
Clearfield, Utah is hereby changed from Commercial to Business Park and said change 



shall be incorporated into and reflected by the City’s General Plan and its Future Land 
Use Map. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
posting in three public places within Clearfield City. 
 
 
DATED this 28th day of October, 2014, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the 
Clearfield City Council. 
 
 
 
      CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL  
 
 

AYE:   
 

NAY:   
 
EXCUSED:  



CLEARFIELD CITY ORDINANCE 2014-25 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PROPERTIES LOCATED AT APPROXIMATELY 
919 WEST AND 939 WEST, 1600 SOUTH (TIN’S: 12-391-0008, 12-391-0009) IN 
CLEARFIELD, DAVIS COUNTY, UTAH, FROM (C-2) COMMERCIAL TO (M-1) 
MANUFACTURING AND AMENDING THE CLEARFIELD CITY ZONING MAP 
ACCORDINGLY. 
 
PREAMBLE: This Ordinance rezones properties located at 919 West and 939 West, 

1600 South (TIN’s: 12-391-0008 and 12-391-0009) in Clearfield, Davis 
County, Utah, from (C-2) Commercial to (M-1) Manufacturing and 
amends the City’s Zoning Map to reflect those changes.  The new zoning 
designations enacted by this ordinance are in accordance with recent 
amendments to the City’s General Plan and General Plan Map and 
maintain consistency between the City’s Land Use Ordinance and the 
General Plan.  

  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to an application received by the City’s Community 
Development department, the City Council must consider changes in the zoning for two 
parcels of property located within the Wilcox Farms Subdivision as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, following proper notice, as set forth by state law and the City’s Land 
Use Ordinance, the City Council held a public hearing on the application for a change in 
zoning for these parcels and allowed public comment thereon; and  
 
 WHEREAS, after the public hearing, the City Council carefully considered any 
comments made during the public hearing, the Applicant/Landowner’s position, as well 
as the Planning Commission’s recommendations regarding the proposed rezones; and 
 
 WHEREAS, following its public deliberation, the City Council has determined 
that the zoning changes listed below are in the best interests of Clearfield City and its 
residents and will most effectively implement the City’s planning efforts while allowing 
the subject properties to be put to their highest and best use;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Clearfield City Council that: 

 
Section 1. Zoning Changes: The zoning for the following properties is hereby changed as 
specified below: 
 
Properties located at 919 West and 939 West, 1600 South (TIN’s: 12-391-0008 and 12-
391-0009) in Clearfield, Davis County, Utah, from (C-2) Commercial to (M-1) 
Manufacturing, subject to and conditioned upon full execution and recording against the 
properties of the Declaration of Use Restriction, as reviewed and approved by the 
Clearfield City Council (attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and by this reference made a part 
hereof), with the understanding that no building permits or business licenses will be 
issued without conformance to said Declaration.   
 



Section 2. Amendments to Zoning Map:  The Clearfield City Zoning Map is hereby 
amended to reflect the changes in zoning outlined in Section 1 above and the City’s 
Development Services Manager is hereby directed to have a new Zoning Map prepared 
showing said rezoning. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date: This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 
passage and posting in three public places within Clearfield City. 
 
 
Dated this 28th day of October, 2014, at the regularly scheduled meeting of the Clearfield 
City Council. 
 
 
 
      CLEARFIELD CITY CORPORATION 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Mark R. Shepherd, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder  
 
 
 
 
 

VOTE OF THE COUNCIL  
 
 

AYE:   
 

NAY:   



 

CLEARFIELD CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL AGENCY 
MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 
August 26, 2014 

(This meeting was held prior to City Council work and policy sessions.) 
 
PRESIDING:   Bruce Young   Chair 
 
PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Director  
    Kent Bush   Director 

Ron Jones   Director 
 Mike LeBaron   Director 
 Mark Shepherd  Director 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 
    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 
    Brian Brower   City Attorney 
    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 
    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 
    Kim Dabb   Operations Manager 
    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 
    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 
    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir.  
    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 
    Jessica Hardy   Accountant 
    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 
    Kim Read   Deputy Recorder 
     
VISITORS: Paul Morris – MIDA, Kathryn Murray, Mike Wagstaff - MIDA 
 
Chair Young called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
DISCUSSION ON A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH CLEARFIELD STATION LLC 
 
JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, reminded the Board of the discussion which took place during 
the work session of July 8, 2014 and updated the Board on the Loan Agreement with Clearfield 
Station. He stated the Board’s comments had been conveyed to the developer and indicated the 
purpose the current discussion was to determine the dollar figure of the loan and suggested the 
Board determine what it could commit. A discussion took place and the Board determined the 
maximum amount it could commit in the form of a loan was $1.5 million.  
 
Mr. Allen informed the Board that Clearfield Station was proposing the property acquired with 
the loan proceeds be the designated collateral pledged for the loan. He indicated since the 
acquired property would be used for public streets, there was little collateral potential for it. He 
had then suggested to the developer that Lot 1C in the development was a possible collateral 
source to which the developer responded that wasn’t an option because it could negatively 

1 
 



 

impact financing options and loan approval for the development. He pointed out where 1C would 
be located in the proposed development.  
 
Mr. Allen reminded the Board it had asked for personal guarantees from John Thackeray, Kevin 
Garn and UTA and Mr. Thackeray and Mr. Garn had agreed to that provision; however, no lien 
could be placed against any personal assets. He further stated the developer indicated UTA could 
not be a guarantor and believed its risk associated with the development was in its allowing the 
property to be developed.  
 
Adam Lenhard, City Manager, emphasized the City was taking on a substantial risk compared to 
a bank that had significant assets to offset its risks. Mr. Allen added the developer really hadn’t 
provided the City with a good option for collateral. Director Shepherd suggested that maybe 
Clearfield Station didn’t really need the City’s money and pointed out all parties were familiar 
with Davis County’s loan agreements and emphasized the proposed loan agreement was 
patterned after Davis County’s procedures. He expressed his opinion if the developer wasn’t 
willing to provide the personal guarantees, the City should consider not providing the requested 
loan.   
 
Director Benson asked if the developer was dealing with Davis County instead of Clearfield, 
what would be required for collateral. Mr. Lenhard responded he was aware of previous 
instances in which borrowers had pledged their personal homes as collateral. Mr. Allen 
mentioned outside counsel was still reviewing the proposed loan agreement and indicated he 
would need to forward official comments from the Board following the evening’s discussions.  
 
Brian Brower, City Attorney, reminded the Board it had contractually agreed in the Development 
Agreement to consider loaning the requested funds and suggested staff was requesting direction 
from the Board to negotiate terms. A discussion took place regarding collateral associated with 
the loan. Mr. Allen clarified the property acquired with the loan wasn’t adequate collateral and 
the Board would be requesting the ability to lien personal assets of Mr. Thackeray and Mr. Garn.  
 
Mr. Brower requested clarification from the Board regarding collateral pledged by UTA for the 
loan and a discussion took place. He mentioned there might be statutory restrictions associated 
with pledging collateral from UTA and its officials and suggested the City consider the use of an 
interlocal agreement for guarantee.    
 
Mr. Allen informed the Board of the developers proposed amortization schedule of thirty years 
which included payments for the first two years following the advance be interest only. He 
continued regular payments would take place for years three through nine and a balloon payment 
for the remaining balance on year 10. He reported staff believed amortizing the loan over 30 
years was too long because of the large payment on the back end of the loan. He mentioned even 
though the CDRA fund could handle that, it just wasn’t a good idea and the consulting attorney 
suggested the loan be amortized over ten years. Chair Young suggested defining the draw down 
method for disbursement. Mr. Allen requested feedback regarding the repayment schedule and a 
discussion took place.  
 

2 
 



 

Chair Young and Director Benson stated they were not comfortable with a 30 year amortization. 
The Board agreed a 10 year amortization was more appropriate. Mr. Allen proposed a conference 
call between staff and the developer negotiating talking points from the evening’s discussion 
might be better than written comments going back and forth. The Board expressed agreement 
with that suggestion and Mr. Allen indicated he hoped to have everything in place for the 
meeting scheduled for September 9, 2014.    
 
Director Jones moved to adjourn as the CDRA and reconvene as the City Council in a 
work session at 6:19 p.m., seconded by Director Benson. All voting AYE.  
 
The work session reconvened at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Director Shepherd moved to adjourn to a CDRA Closed Session at 8:38 p.m. for the 
purpose of a strategy session to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property. 
Utah Code Ann. § 52-4-204 and §52-4-205(1)(d), seconded by Director Benson. The motion 
carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Directors Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron, 
and Shepherd . Voting NO – None.   
 

 
The minutes for the closed session are kept in a separate location. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3 
 



 

CLEARFIELD CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL AGENCY 
MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 
August 26, 2014 

(This meeting was held following the regularly scheduled City Council Meeting.) 
 
PRESIDING:   Bruce Young   Chair 
 
PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Director  
    Kent Bush   Director 

Ron Jones   Director 
 Mike LeBaron   Director 
 Mark Shepherd  Director 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 
    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 
    Brian Brower    City Attorney 
    Greg Krusi   Police Chief  
    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 
    Kim Dabb   Operations Manager 
    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 
    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir. 
    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 
    Jessica Hardy   Accountant 
    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 
    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 
 
VISITORS: John W. Hansen, Marilyn Love – Sundowner Condominiums, Patricia A Maurer – 
Sundowner Condominiums, Kathryn Murray 
 
Chair Young called the meeting to order at 7:38 p.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE CLEARFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL 
AGENCY (CDRA) MINUTES FROM THE AUGUST 12, 2014 POLICY SESSION  
 
Director LeBaron moved to approve the Clearfield Community Development and Renewal 
Agency (CDRA) minutes from the August 12, 2014 policy session as written, seconded by 
Director Shepherd. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Directors 
Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Shepherd. Voting NO – None.  
 
 
There being no further business to come before the Community Development and Renewal 
Agency, Director Shepherd moved to adjourn as the Community Development and 
Renewal Agency and reconvene as the City Council in a work session at 7:39 p.m., 
seconded by Director Bush. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 
Directors Benson, Bush, Jones, LeBaron and Shepherd. Voting NO – None.  

1 
 



 

  CLEARFIELD CITY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND RENEWAL AGENCY 
MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 
September 23, 2014 

(This meeting was held prior to City Council work and policy sessions.) 
 
PRESIDING:   Bruce Young   Chair 
 
PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Director 
    Kent Bush   Director 
    Mike LeBaron   Director 
    Mark Shepherd  Director 
 
EXCUSED:   Ron Jones   Director   
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 
    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 
    Brian Brower    City Attorney 
    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 
    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 
    Scott Hess   Development Services Manager 
    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 
    Rich Knapp   Administrative Services Director 
    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 
 
EXCUSED:    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 
 
VISITORS: There were no visitors.  
 
Chair Young called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 
DISCUSSION ON A TAX INCREMENT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT FOR THE 
REDEVELOPMENT OF CLEARFIELD CENTER 
 
JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, distributed a handout relevant to the Clearfield Center 
Redevelopment Tax Increment Participation and informed the CDRA Board Clearfield Center 
was comprised of the three parcels across from the City building, (the old Taco Time, Clearfield 
Auto Parts and the adjoining vacant lot with the pine tree). He stated the developer requested the 
City contribute tax increment toward the development and believed that would be necessary for 
it to be successful. Mr. Allen referred to the handout and reviewed the main points and explained 
the proposed tax increment potential was based on some assumptions which were identified at 
the bottom of the handout. He inquired if the CDRA Board was open to contributing possible tax 
increment. He directed the Board to the accompanying site plan and emphasized it was different 
than what had gone out in the packet and explained changes had been made to the parking. He 
mentioned the developer was also working on a new site plan which would be received 
sometime later in the week. He emphasized the developer had emphasized how important tax 

1 
 



 

increment would be to the development. He believed if the City wasn’t willing to contribute tax 
increment the developer would most likely not be able to purchase the properties.  
 
Mr. Allen suggested the Board consider the following questions: 

• Was the CDRA interested in participating with tax increment? 
• If so, then to what extent? Usually this was done on a percentage bases but the CDRA 

could commit a dollar figure. 
• What about the project was compelling the CDRA to participate with tax increment given 

there wasn’t much commercial development? 
 
Adam Lenhard, City Manager, pointed out increment would only exist if the developer 
proceeded with the development and the main purpose in creating a project area was to use the 
generated increment as a tool toward development. He emphasized the City wouldn’t be 
contributing something it already had at this time.  
 
Director LeBaron inquired how much increment the developer needed for the project to happen. 
Mr. Allen responded the developer hadn’t answered that question yet. He believed the developer 
was interested in knowing whether the CDRA was willing to commit to contributing some tax 
increment with a specific dollar amount requested at a later date.   
 
Chair Young expressed concern about committing tax increment up front and the development 
not generating enough increment to cover the City’s costs associated with the development. Mr. 
Allen pointed out impact fees would be collected which could offset some incremental costs to 
the City.  A discussion took place about the cost benefit in contributing tax increment. 
 
Director LeBaron suggested the developer try to attract additional retail development for the 
area. Mr. Lenhard mentioned the developer might be interested in developing other adjacent 
parcels if the development was successful. Director Shepherd believed this development might 
possibly be the spark which could be the catalyst for other projects.  
 
Mr. Allen suggested the Board could suggest a contribution of a designated amount of tax 
increment based on the current submitted site plan; however, the Board would be willing to 
commit to more funds if the retail component was increased. He mentioned providing the 
developer with a list of benchmarks and a corresponding dollar figure of tax increment funds 
which could be contributed. The CDRA Board was receptive to Mr. Allen’s suggestion.  
 
Mr. Allen summarized the Board had general interest in committing tax increment toward the 
development. 
 
Mr. Allen informed the Council that the Planning Commission would be approving a zoning text 
amendment for the DR (Downtown Redevelopment) Zone which would be applied for on this 
project. He pointed out the following issues regarding the DR zone: 

• Ground floor fronting State Street was required to be commercial. 
• Minimum square footage. 

He stated both of those items would be addressed and revised through the Planning Commission 
at its meetings in October and November.  

2 
 



 

Director Shepherd mentioned the housing component would consist of one bedroom units with 
large living areas.  
 
Director Shepherd moved to adjourn as the CDRA and reconvene as the City Council in a 
work session at 6:19 p.m., seconded by Director Bush. All voting AYE. Director Jones was 
not present for the vote.  
 
 
 

3 
 



Staff Report 
To: CDRA Board of Directors 

From: JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager 

Date: October 23, 2014 

Re: Sale of property to First National Bank of Layton 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Approve the Real Estate Purchase Contract and proposed addendum/counteroffer for 
the sale of the property at 690 South State Street (Parcel ID #12-434-0001) to First 
National Bank of Layton, and authorize the Chair’s signature to any necessary 
documents. 

II. DESCRIPTION / BACKGROUND 

In January of 1996, the Clearfield CDRA and First National Bank of Layton entered into 
a 30-year ground lease for this parcel of land, and the bank subsequently constructed 
their building.  The lease provides First National Bank the exclusive and irrevocable 
option to purchase the leased land at any time during the term of the lease (after the 
first three years) for the total sum of $250,000.  The bank recently provided the CDRA 
with written notice of its intent to exercise this option. 

The REPC proposed by the bank does not include any earnest money, and it requires 
that closing shall occur on or before November 28.  The counteroffer prepared by staff 
requires $5,000 in earnest money and pushes closing out to December 19, if needed.  
We felt that requiring some earnest money is in order, since the CDRA will have some 
costs (e.g. ALTA title insurance) that we’d want to have covered if the transaction for 
some reason were to not materialize. 

III. IMPACT 

a. Fiscal 

The CDRA will receive $250,000 (less closing costs) for the sale of this 
property.  These funds will be attributed to RDA #7.  Of course, the stream of 
revenue from monthly rent ($1,000/month) will terminate. 

b. Operations / Service Delivery 

N/A 

  

1 



IV. SCHEDULE / TIME CONSTRAINTS 

The lease specifies that closing shall occur within 60 days of the notice of intent, which 
was received on October 22, 2014.  Thus, the counteroffer includes a closing date of 
December 19. 

V. LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 

• Real Estate Purchase Contract 

• Addendum/counteroffer 

• Notice of intent to exercise option to purchase 

• Ground lease 

 Page 2 
 











                                                                                     Page 1 of 1 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
TO 

REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 

 THIS IS AN [   ] ADDENDUM [ X] COUNTEROFFER (hereinafter referred to as the “ADDENDUM”) 
to that certain REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT (the “REPC”) with an Offer Reference Date of 
 October 22, 2014, including all prior addenda and counteroffers, between First National Bank of Layton, as 
Buyer, and Clearfield City Redevelopment Agency Corporation, as Seller, regarding Property located at 690 South 
State Street, Clearfield, Utah 84015.  The following terms are hereby incorporated as part of the REPC: 
 
 

 
1. The Earnest Money Deposit shall be $5,000.00. 

 
2. Closing shall occur on or before December 19, 2014. 

 
 
 

To the extent the terms of this ADDENDUM modify or conflict with any provisions of the REPC, 
including all prior addenda and counteroffers, the terms of this ADDENDUM shall control.  All other terms of the 
REPC, including all prior addenda and counteroffers, not modified by this ADDENDUM or previous addenda or 
counteroffers shall remain the same.  Buyer shall have until 5:00 [   ]AM [ X]PM Mountain Time on October 31, 
2014  , to accept the terms of this ADDENDUM in accordance with the provisions of Section 23 of the REPC.  
Unless so accepted, the offer as set forth and/or confirmed in this ADDENDUM shall lapse. 
 
              
Seller’s Signature      Buyer’s Signature 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE/COUNTEROFFER/REJECTION 
CHECK ONE: 
[   ] ACCEPTANCE:  [   ] Seller    [   ] Buyer hereby accepts the terms of this ADDENDUM. 
 
[   ] COUNTEROFFER:  [   ] Seller   [   ] Buyer presents as a counteroffer to the terms of ADDENDUM No.__ 
 
              
Signature                                           (Date)      (Time)  Signature                                           (Date)      (Time)   
 
[   ] REJECTION:  [   ] Seller   [   ] Buyer rejects the foregoing ADDENDUM. 
 
              
Signature                                           (Date)      (Time)  Signature                                           (Date)      (Time)   
 






































	A102814
	092314wminutes
	100714wminutes
	101414minutes
	101414wminutes
	FSP 1410-0001 Larsen Comm Sub Amended Plat - City Council - 10-28-2014 - Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATIONS
	PROJECT SUMMARY
	HISTORY
	ANALYSIS
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	ATTACHMENTS

	ZTA 1409-0006 Staff Report CC - Home Daycares  Preschools
	GPA 1410-0002 Wilcox Gen Plan Amendment - City Council - 10-28-2014 - Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	ANALYSIS
	FINDINGS
	ATTACHMENTS

	RZN 1410-0002 Wilcox Rezone - City Council - 10-28-2014 - Staff Report
	RECOMMENDATION
	PROJECT SUMMARY
	ANALYSIS
	FINDINGS
	ATTACHMENTS

	2014-23 ZTA-Residential Daycares  Preschools 10-22-14
	2014-24 General Plan Amendment Wilcox Farms 10-22-14
	VOTE OF THE COUNCIL

	2014-24 General Plan Amendment Wilcox Farms (Staff Version) 10-23-14
	VOTE OF THE COUNCIL

	2014-25 Wilcox Farms Rezone 10-22-14
	VOTE OF THE COUNCIL

	082614CDRAwminutes
	082614CDRAminutes
	092314CDRAwminutes
	10 28 14 FNB REPC staff report
	FNB REPC 10 22 14
	REPC addendum - sale of land to FNB 10 28 14
	ADDENDUM NO. 1
	ACCEPTANCE/COUNTEROFFER/REJECTION

	FNB notice of intent to exercise option to purchase
	First National Bank Lease



